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PREFACE

his Annual Audit Report for the year ended

31" March 2018 has been prepared for submission

to the Council in terms of sub-section 17 of Section
59 of the NDMC Act, 1994.

The Report contains Audit comments on the Financial
Accounts of the New Delhi Municipal Council for the year
2017-18 and reports on Audit of Collection and
Treatment of Municipal solid waste Management, Audit
of Construction and Demolition Waste Management,
Thematic audit on Internal Controls in Architect
Department along with a stand alone audit paragraph on
Commercial Department. The matters relating to the
period subsequent to 2017-18 have also been included,
wherever necessary.
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OVERVIEW

This Report includes one Chapter on the state of finances of the New Delhi Municipal Council for the
year 2017-18, one chapter on audit comments on the Financial Accounts of the Council for 2017-18,
two chapters containing Audit of Collection and Treatment of Municipal Solid Waste & Construction
and Demolition Waste Management and one chapler containing Internal Control in Architect
Department. In addition, one chapter comprising of one paragraph dealing with loss due to wrong
application of Fixed Charges and non-application of correct power factor is also reported.

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COUNCIL-ANALYSIS OF THE BUDGET DOCUMENTS [Chapter- 1)

The total actual receipts (Revenue and Capital) increased from $3465.19 crore in 2016-17 to
13622.30 crores in 2017-18 registering an increase of 4.53 percent. The receipts of ¥3622.30 crore
inter-alia are tax revenue of T784.29 crore, non-tax revenue of T2246.51 crore, revenue grants,
contribution and subsidies of T97.92 crore etc. Total expenditure (revenue & capital) increased
from T3053.20 crore in 2016-17 to T3186.15 crore In 2017-18 registering an increase of
4.35 percent. The expenditure of T3186.15 crore inter-alia are establishment expenses of
T1271.86 crore, administrative expenses of T112.05 crore and operations & maintenance of
71105.11 crore etc. [Parograph of Chapter 1{C Jot Page No. 2]

Evidently the rate of growth of receipts was more than the rate of growth of expenditure in 2017-18.
Audit comments on the Annual Accounts (Chapter-2)

+  Major Audit Observations/Comments on the accounts of the Council for the year 2017-18 are
asunder :-

(a) Liabilities

i} Liabilityof ¥821.17 crore on account of Provident Fund (PF) and investment (assets) made there

on has been kept off the balance sheet. Further PF trust had not been setup

[Paragraph4.1.1. ﬂHMfﬂhrFﬂtﬁv 30]
i} Mon Providing of full liability towards Pension payvable to emplovees. Further, separate fund for

pension not created. [Paragraphd. 1.1. (I){B) ot Page No. 32]

(b) Fixed Assets

i) Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) was not being converted into fixed assets since 2004-05 though
the fixed assets converted out of CWIP had been put to use. As aresult, OWIP of T2188.76 crore
as on 31" March 2018 presented a distorted picture of (a) fixed assets in possession and use, (b)
amount of depreciation charged on fixed assets and (c) surplus of income over expenditure. The
issue was raised during audit of Financial Statements for 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 but
remedial action was awaited, {Paregroph4.1.2. (1)fA) & (Bl at Poge Mo, 34]

i) The investment of ¥5317.94 crore as depicted in the Financial Statements erroneously included
an amount of T5.40 crore matured in 2014-15 but still showing as investment. This point was
raised during 2016-17 but no remedial action has beentaken.

[Paragraph4.1.2. (Ve ){li} at Page No. 42]
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[c) Current Assets

i) Bankreconciliation Statement was not provided to Audit therefore, various potential risk areas
like wrong debits by bank, unauthorised payments, status of stale cheques etc. not examined by
Audit. [Poragroph4.1.2.{V){A ) ot Page No. 36 & 38]

i} Therewas under provision on account of bad & doubtful debtsto the tune of 785,66 crore which
resulted in overstatement of Surplus. [Parcgroph4.1.2. {V1{B) 2ot Poge No. 40]

iii) There was miscalculation of interest earned on imvestment 1o the tune of 128.45 crore. This
point was ralsed during 2016-17 but no remedial actionhas beentaken,

[Paregraph 4.1.2. (V{8 l{e}at Poge No. 40]
(d) Income

i) Revenueof ¥1080.99 crore representing property tax recoverable from private parties had been
recognised under the by-laws-2009. However, the by-laws had been struck down as being ulira

vires of the NDMC Act as per High court of Delhiorder. [Parograph4.1.3. (A ) ot Poge No. 42]
ii) Credit balance of ¥2.07 crore (3504102) and 714,75 crore (3504103) are not payable but in the
system these amount remain unadujusted. [Paragraph4.1.3. (B) ot Page No. 44]
(e) Expenditure
1) Operating expenses had been understated by ¥59.81 crore as liability of operational
cxpenditure was not provided. [Parograph 4.1.4. [A) ot Poge No. 44]
ii} Medical bills amounting to T6.71 crore for the year 2017-18 were not accounted for in
FY2017-18. [Paragraph4.1.4. (A) {il)}at Poge No. 46]

Follow up on Annual Audit Report and Local Audit Report [Chapter-3)

1. Detail of 140 outstanding paras of Annual Audit Reports as on 30" November 2020,
[Paragraph (A) ot Poge No. 48]
2. Detail of 7020 outstanding paras of Local Audit Reports issued till 30" Novernber 2020,
[Paragraph (A} at Page No. 50]

Auditon Collection and Treatment of Municipal 5olid Waste (Chapter-4)

Despite multiple requests and reminders the Public Health Department did not provide the
essential records such as policy files, tendering process for selection of Concessionaire &
Independent Consultant and approval of Council, minutes of the meeting of monitoring and review
committee, fleet details, details of MSW, material issued to employee, log books, OSRT details etc.
which severely restricted the scope and objective of audit, Audit findings were made from the very

lmited records made available to audit which are 25 follows:
[Poragraph 4.3 Audit Constralnts at Poge No. 54]

¥ Mon pre approval of Council for floating tender & award of praject for collection and treatment of

Municipal Solid Waste. [Paragraph 4.4.1at Poge No. 56]
¥ Irregular payment of 22,61 crore was made to the Concessionaire in violation of the terms and
conditions of concession agreement. [Paragraph 4.4.4(l}at Page No. 60]

¥ Undue benefit to the Concessionaire by providing project facilities in violation of Concession

Agreement coupled withirregular award of work to Independent Consultant.
[Paregroph 4.4.3 ot Poge No, 58]

[Parograph 4.4.9at Page No. 70]
¥ Municipal 50lid Waste was being disposed off in violation of MSW Rules.

[Paragroph 4.4.8at PogeNo, 70]
¥ Deficiencies in the implementation and monitoring of the project. [Peragroph 4.4.100t Poge No. 72]

¥ Failed to achieve the commitment for fero washe colonies.

(vin)




.f7, e % wnfifes Fran wlign fid-2018

Femior afir freaim arafime weiar oo v oitsr ( ameama-5 )

» Fmter i favm amfire 8 W o Froem % A ey =1 smezaifdn % wa v 3
wagfa T wr fagera 78 fivm a1 [srdT 5.2.4 P e 74]

it o % Teetam F iz o =1 e o w0 [arpedz 5.2.1 v W 78]
¥ e Wt % A o frefa o0 A & % W 16,02 wig w0 e e = |
[arqaidy 5.2 7 yer vy 85]
rwﬁwwmm.ﬁﬂﬂnﬁmﬂﬂﬁﬂiﬁmﬁm! P P
- frarm wEhd & e @ foreem % wRtrrerey A ¥ e it firer, et el e A
fir=ran, i T A 2 ST % - el | femmmdl ®1 s e gen
[sryeids 5.2.5, 5.2.6 3ifr 5.2.8 yer wemr 83, 85 sffv 87]
aregEr farar & ariafies fraror @it Framrdy o frrms i ( amra-6 )

> A o gro freld s wegdterron = o = o, affez gl oo ) == 79 0w T favm
we w0 W, wereRrE S e T w o w0 @ W T Ty st % wf v el

w it ERaEm [srgei 6.1 7 wEaT 59]
e argEn faem gfmr aafiE freiam o3 99 5 saEamElaTidl ¥ sesits wet @i
R st s i sm s [arqeiy 6.2.1 T wamr 91]
» firfrm v wfte % forg v o = oot a1 carm [sryaiT 6.2.3 v wmar 97]

» furn dagll & wdanfial ®1 S & wfomresy 21,10 wig sifwfim = g |
[3rpeis 6.2.4 T HamT 99]

> it =1 e o e, o A W i g, wefe o agE w5 e e 1w,
fermTal =1 AErEE 7 w0, WREN [ w5 o | fafas wrwE w0 e sffez ® S

o i Frvret v o firm ot o o anfs % e )
[armdressRe2 ayERem s ® 111]

arfnfars faam - e stz o ( sem-7)

fafen % awa fofrm Y @i v daen & e @] %0 8 w0 fafdn % w6 26,93 660/~
T i s | [argeir 701 ) (il )y wemr 115]




Annual Audit Report of NDMC - 2018

Auditon Constuction and Demaolition Waste Management (Chapter-5)

¥ NDMC did not conduct a proper cost benefit analysis before outsourcing the contract for
collection and disposal of Construction & Demolition Waste, [Parogroph 5.2.4at Poge No. 80]

¥ Deficiencies inthe adoption of Integrity Pact in contravention of CVC guidelinegs,

[Paragroph 5.2.1 ot Page No, 75]
¥ Avaidable average expenditure of £6.02 crore due to delay in taking decision in respect of waste

generator, {Parograph 5.2.7 ot Poge No, 86]

* Deficlencies such as determination of less Performance Security, delay in deduction of labour
Cess, [Porograph 5.2.2 & 5.2.3 ot Page No. 78]

¥ Deviation fromthe provisions of the Concession Agreement resulting in undue advantage to the
concessionaire such as Missing GPS details of vehicle, variation in the weight of emply vehicles,

establishment of the workshop. [Paragroph 5.2.5,5.2.68 5.2.8atPage No. 843, 86 & 88]
Thematic Report on Audit of Internal Control in the Architect Department (Chapter - 6)

¥ Due to non production of records by the Architect Department, audit could not fully examing
whother the department was functioning effectively, efficiently and transparently. 1t also
indicates alack of willingness towards accountability. [Paragraph &.1at Poge No, 30]

¥ Architect Department was functioning without monitoring the basic internal control mechanism
such as chronological entry of applicationfcasesfrequests received and their subsequent

monitoring till disposal. {Paragroph 6.2.1at PageNo. 52]

¥ Non maintenance of Escrow Accounts in respect of sum received on account of mixed use
premises. {Paragroph 6.2.3 at Page No, 58]
¥ Deployment of staff without sanction resulting in irregular expenditure of T1.10 crore.

fParagroph 6.2.4 0t Poge No, 100]
¥ Inconsistencies in measuring the distance, improper sanction of building plan, non adherence of

property follow up, non compliance of complaints, adopting different norms in calculation of
parking charges. Site occupled without completion certificate etc. were noticed during audit.

[Paragraph 6.2.5t06.2.14at Poge No. 100t0 112]

Standalone Audit Paragraph — Commercial Department (Chapter-7)

Wrong application of fixed charges and power factor resulted in loss of revenue amounting to
¥6,93,660/- [Porograph 7.1(i) &({ii)at PageNo. 116]

(x]
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CHAPTER-1

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COUNCIL -
ANALYSIS OF THE BUDGET DOCUMENTS

A. Introduction

This chapter depicts the financial position of the Mew Delhi Municipal Council (NDMC), for the year
ending 31 March 2018 based on the information contained in the Budget Documents of the
Council.

B. Financial position of the Council

The accounts of the Council are prepared as per Section 58 of the NDMC Act, 1994, NDMC decided
to switch ower to Accrual Based Double Entry System of Accounting with effect from the year
2004-05 vide Council Resolution No.3(xil) dated 247 April 2002, The accounts for the year 2017-18
were stated to be prepared on double entry system of accounting through a software named e-
finance developed for NDMC by a private vendor, The format for preparation of the Accountsisto be
as prescribed in the National Municipal Accounts Manual [NMAM).

The financial position of the Council should be reflected through the Mew Delhi Municipal Fund,
maintained by the Council under Section 44 of the NDMC Act, 1994, All receipts and expenditures
are to be booked under this Fund,

C. Sources and application of funds

The main sources of funds of the Council were as follows -

* The operational receipts (Revenue) increased from T2996.11 crore for the year 2016-17 to
T3128.72 crore for the year 2017-18 which depicted a rise of 4.42 percent.

# The Non-operational receipts [capital) increased from T469.09 crore for the year 2016-17 to
7493.58 crore for the year 2017-18 depicting a rise of 5.22 percent.

Thus, the total receipts [Revenue and Capital) increased from T34685.19 crore in 2018-17 to
¥3622.30 crore in 2017-18 registering an increase of 4.53 percent. The receipts of T3622.30 crore
inter-alia inciuded tax revenue of ¥ 784.29 crore, non-tax revenue of T2344.43 crore, and revenue

grants/ contribution/ and subsidies etc. of T493.58 crare.

The main use of funds of the Council were as follows -

* The Revenue Expenditure increased from 7280837 Crore for the year 2016-17 to 12927.39
Crore forthe year 2017-18 which depicted anincrease of 4,23 percent,

#  The Capital Expenditure increased from 7244.83 Crore for the year 2016-17 to 258,76 Crore for
theyear 2017-18 depicting a rise of 5.69 parcent.

Thus, the total expenditure (Revenue B Capital) increased from $3053.20 crore in 2016-17 to
13186.15 crore in 2017-18 reglstering an increase of 4.35 percent. The expenditure of T3186.15
crore inter-alia included establishment expenses of 127186 crore, administrative expenses of
1112.05 crore, operations and maintenance etc, of T1105.11 crore etc.
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0. Mew Delhi Municipal Fund

In terms of Section 44 of the NDMC Act 1994, a Fund known as “The New Delhi Municipal Fund’ is
being maintained by the Council. The money received by the Council or on behalf of the Coundil
from any source is to form a part of the Fund. Expenditure on or behalf of the Council is to be
incurred out of this Fund as per provisions of the Act. The total receipts and expenditures under this
Fund forthe year 2017-18 were as under:

Table No. 1.1 Recelpt and Payment for the year 2017-18 [T in crore)
Year 2017-18 2016-17
Opening Balance as on 1° Aprilt 4391.55 467984
Add Recelpts during the year 3622.30 3455.19
Total B513.85 8145.03
Less Expenditure during the year 3186.15 3053.21
Accrual Adjustment 10295 =300 27
Closing Balance as on 317 March 5430.65 48591.55
Net surplus (+)/deficit{-) during the year 539.10 211.71

The closing balance of the fund increased from T4891.55 crore for the year 2016-17 to ¥5430.65
crore at the end of 2017-18 and the net surplus for the year has increased from £211.71 crore in
2016-17ta¥539.10crare in 2017-18.

E Receipts

E1l. RevenueReceipts

E.1.1 Growthof revenue receipts

The revenue receipts of the Council consist mainly of tax and non-tax revenue, besides grants-in-aid

from Government of NCT of Delhi. Trend of revenue receipts, including grants-in-aid received
during the last five years as taken from budget books, was as under:

Table 1.2 : Growth of revenue recelpts [T in crore)
Year Revenue receipts Percentage Increase (+)/Decrease]-) over previous year
2017-18 312872 4,42
2016-17 2956.11 258
2015-16 290,65 670
2014-15 2TITET 14.90
2013-14 238240 3.65

Mote 1: Includes Postage & Stamps worth ¥ 0.17 Crore
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E.1.2 Componentsof revenue receipts

Revenue receipts under its different components during the last five years arc as under:

Table 1.3: Components of Revenue Recelpts [T in crore)
Components 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16 | 2014-15 | 2013-14
revenue 78479 | 64758 | S550.29 | 480.09 | 455.87
(25.07) | (21.61) | (18.84) | (17.54)| (19.06)

Mon-tax revenue 2246.51 | 2257.48 | 2290.78 | 2179.32 | 1B65.89
(71.80) | (75.35) | (78.43) | (79.61) | (78.03)

Grants-in-aid from Government 97.92 91.05 79.58 77.86 69.65
of Delhi f Central Government (3.13) |  (3.04) (2.73) | (2.85)] (2.91)
Total 312872 | 299611 | 2920.65 | 2737.27 | 2391.41
(100) |  (100) (100) (100) (100)

Maote: Flgures glven In brackets Indlicate percentage with respect to total recelpts

*  Mon-tax revenue continued to be the major component of revenue recelpts, however, the share
of non-tax revenue decreased from 75.35 percent in 2016-2017 to 71.80 percent in 2017-18.
Grants-in-aid from Government of NCT of Delhi/Central Government increased from 3.04 percent
in 2016-17 to 3.13 percent in 2017-18 and share of tax-revenue increased from 21.61 percent in
2016-17 10 25.07 percentin 2017-18. This Is depicted graphically below :

Gragh L1 Companents of Révenue Recslpt

2500 -
2000 ."'"-Ilﬂ.u PEOTE 339748 124431 =i=Man Lax
1500

e T K PEWERLE

Gt b ald

E.2. Taxrevenuereceipts
E.2.1Trend of tax revenue

The tax revenue of the Council consists of house tax, duty on transfer of property, advertisement tax
etc. The trend of tax revenue during the years 2013-14 to 2017-18 was as under:

Table 1.4: Growth of tax revenue (¥ in crore)
Year Actual tax | Percentage increase{+)/decrease(-) | Percentage of total
revenue over the previous year revenue recelpts
2017-18 784.29 21.11 25.06
2016-17 647.58 17.68 21.61
2015-16 550.29 14.62 18.84
2014-15 480.09 5.31 17.54
2013-14 455.87 (-)7.98 19.14
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E.2.2 Componentsof tax revenue
The growth pattern of components of tax revenue over the last five vears was as detailed below:

Table 1.5; Compaonents of tax revenue [T in crore)
Components 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16 | 2014-15 | 2013-14
Property Tax 641,54 | 540.73 | 44903 | 369.89 | 36673

(81.75) | (83.50) | (81.60) | (77.04)| (80.44)

Duty on transfer of property 6345 | 3370 30.93 41.70 26.16
(8.85) | (5.20) (5.62) (8.69) {5.74)

Elect. /Advertisement/show tax 3811 38.72 40.22 39.18 36.78
(4.86) | (5.98) (7.21) (8.16) (8.07)

Assigned share of taxes 35.61 34.42 30.10 29.33 26.20
(4.54) | (5.32) (S.47) | (8&.11) (5.75)

Total 784.71 | B47.57 550.28 480.10 455.87
(100) |  (100) (100) (100) (100)

Note: Figures given in brackets indicate percentages with respect to total receipts
The share of different component of tax revenue is graphically depicted below -

Graph : 1.2 Components of Tax Revenue [percent] for 2017-18

495454

m Property Tax
| Durty on transfer of property
= Elect/Advertizement show tax
® Azgignied thare of taxed
B1.T5

Property tax continued to be the major contributor to the tax revenue. However, its share fell
down by 1.75 percent as compared to the previous year.

E.3. Non-taxrevenue receipts

E.3.1 Growthof non-taxrevenue : Non-tax revenue of the Council consists of sale of energy/water,
rentflicence fee, interest on investments and other miscellaneous receipts.

Graph 1.3 Components of Tax Revenue (percent)
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The respected share of each component is depicted below:

Tabde 1.5 Growth of mon-ta revenus [Fincrore)  Graph 1.4 Growth of Mon Tax Revenue (T in crone]
Yiar Actual fion-ta Percentage
evenue increase{+)/ decrease (-] =00

ower the previous year | pong
O =
e e 12 LL L
am41s | 217932 16.50 m:-

201314 1855.53 T.74 01304 01415 201516 200817 2OLT-18

* [n absolute terms, non-tax revenue decreased from 72257.48 crore in 2016-17 to T2246.41
crore in 2017-18, registering a negative 0.49 percent growth as compared tothe previous year.

E.3.2 Composition of non-tax revenue

Growth pattern of various components of non-tax revenue over the last five years was as detailed
balow:

Table 1.7: Components of non-tax revenue [T in crore)
Components 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16 | 2014-15 | 2013-14
Sale of energy 1195.19 | 1119.26 | 117497 | 1097.54 | 957.54

(53.20) | (49.58) | (51.29) | (50.36) | (51.32)

Sale of water + Sewerage 19168 | 23848 | 20220 | 182.45| 147.44
(8.53) | (10.56) (8.83) (8.37) (7.90)

Rent/licence fee and receipts 40348 | 400.82 | 41423 | 43879 | 288.19
from commercial activities (17.96) | (17.76) | (18.08) | (20.13)| (15.45)
Fees, fines and misc. receipts 60,23 30,18 33.29 28,25 38.91
(2.69) | (1.34) (1.46) (1.30) {2.08)

Interest on investment 39573 | 468.74 | 45596 | 43229 43331
(17.62) | (20.76) | (20.34) | (19.84) | (23.25)

Tatal 224641 | 2257.48 | 2200.65 | 2179.32 | 1865.890
(100) (100} {100) (100) (100}

Mote: Figures given In brackets indicate percentage with respect to total receipts

Major sources of non-tax revenue were receipts on account of sale of energy (53.20 percent),
interest on investment (17,62 percent) and rentflicence fee and receipts from other commercial
activities (17.96 percent).

The negative growth In the tax revenue was largely due to decrease In the interest Income which
fell from T468.74 crore In 2016-17 to 7395,73 crore In 2017-18. This was stated by NDMC to be due
to falling interest rate offered by the banks.




=x,fr. 3, wires i anfifes e witen frad-2018

B-4. WETEAT STRA Wit

e e g et & werman ¢ ufteg fieelt TR | wa S # 0 | weEa
w1 et i 591 2 <o W T @ v P TR o

wrfirr 1.8 @ WETEE AnTITY (rwig @) pres TeET: 1.5 FEGA AT (¢ iy ©)
i T AT it = -
fm L
100 - o
201718 o792 2.70 g B — — =
2016-17] 9105 2.54 el
e 40
2015-16|  79.58 1.90 20 -
2014-15|  77.86 2.62 o - BN BN = W=
2013-14] 695 276 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

§-5, Troe il & aemmar

Tl | WE-2018 TF F[A WG A9 THEE F 16088.76 Fg T fmmn mn @, vetE,
T of =1 T -aE T W T ) " vee witee ol © o marm mn e, e fam
B WHTIHE FSH 6 I910 T & | TEE F Gyt & dea P & fo, 9w ofn
T~ frn =1 9 TE T e T aneh B R weeh wem gen W w |

> e wiftTat % wEre T fravor frergar # -

i 1.9 [ ity i)

"W e & TR T 14
B0 -
2018 SRR, 76
oo - TR ]
2017 A6 T5.45 " RETIAS
4000 90253
2016 3903.53 = -5
000 | 29008
2015 s s |
oL
2014 2401.80 2014 2018 2016 w7 2018

¥ 2015-16 ® 2017-18 % 20 Tera Wita =t @@ ofn il afy gf FifE T =
w1 T-FFE 2009 F AR W TF FF w9 | Tl 2 wee T aEeE (10
2017) @i wrdE g w2 (22 SRl 2010) & g0 A F fea W e T o wfeR
EEE 4 W T # w9 § fatm s it @ SR sEet grivm T s faee
gfpuEEE | et dre T witea 9w S w9 H q9g 76 |

=, =
=T F wgia : W ol 4 w9 =m 2 oo E vE 39 F oawm wm e T e

TRIfer witas, & wHaiE w1 e | #ofeg 3w 2017-18 9 1 13186.15 FOF
w frg 413 2013-14 9 2017-18 F 509 =58 71 va@fa Fre v g9 o o .

witrEr 1,10 ; wor w5 Wy (T wng i)
o T wWa Yeftra = w5
2017-18 2927.39 258.76 3186.15
2016-17 2808.37 244,83 3053.20 |
2015-16 2B68.12 57.65 2925.77

| 2014-15 2826.97 214.20 3041.17
2013-14 2389.74 237.79 2627.53

11




Annual Audit Report of NDMC - 2018

E4. Grants-in-aid receipts
Assistance from Government of NCT of Delhi : The Council recees assistance from the

Government of NCT of Delhi in the form of grants-in-aid. Trend of assistance received during the
last five years was asunder:

Table 1.8 : Grants-in-ald fincore)  Graph No. 1.5 : Grant in Ald
Year | Grants-in-aid Percentage of 120 -
total receipts 100 —

2017-18 97.92 2.0
2016-17 9105 2.54

n :

60 -._I_.I_I_.. an B

“ 3 = 3 =N
201516]  79.58 190 » | | _
2014-15|  77.86 262 o- N . :

2013-14]  69.65 276 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 201617 2017-18

E.5. Arrearsof revenue recelpts

Arrears of total receivables were shown as T6088.76 crore as of March-2018 in the acoounts,
however, the year-wise breakup of the arrears was not indicated. This was pointed out in earlier
Audit Reports also but corrective steps were yet to be taken by the Department. For better
menitoring of recovery of arrears, year-wise details of arrears are required to be maintained so that
effective steps could be taken for their recovery,

#The Details of Arrears of Revenue Receipts is as under :

TinCroe

Table 1.9 (¥ in crove)

March Ended| Amount Graph No. 1.6

2018 608876 | " | :

2017 467945 | %@ ——— LI
2016 3903.53 = —

2015 a121 | *® |

2014 2401.80 == = = == =

# The huge increase in arrears of revenue receipt during 2015-16t0 201 7-18 was because revenue
was booked based on property tax bye-laws 2009, Though these were struck down by Hon'ble High
Court (10" August 2017) and subsequently by Hon'ble Supreme Court (22 January 2019) but
NDMC continued to depict it as receivable and had not recalculated the same which resulted in
huge uncollectible revenue receivables as arrears.

F. Expenditure

Trend of expenditure : The total expenditure denotes all expenditure, both revenue and capital,
and disbursement of loans to NDMC employees. The Council spent a total of T3186.15 crore in
2017-18. The trend of expenditure during 2013-14 to 2017-18 was as shown below:

Table 1.10: Trend of expenditure (2 in crore)
Year Revenue nditure Capital expenditure Total
2017-18 2927.39 258.76 | 3186.15
2016-17 2808.37 24483 | 3053.20
2015-16 2868.12 57.65 | 2925.77
2014-15 2826.97 214,20 | 3041.17
2013-14 2389.74 237.79 | 2627.53
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The graphical depiction of trend of Expenditure is shown below:-

Graph 1.7 : Trend of Expenditune
e .!ml! .
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+ Total expenditure increased from T3053.20 crore in 2016-17 to T3186.15 crore in 2017-18.
Expenditure incurred during 2017-18 increased by 4.35 percent over the previous year.

= Capital expenditure Increased from 7244.83 crore In 2016-17 to 1258.76 crore In 2017-18
deplcted an increase of 5.69 percent. Revenue expenditure increased from T2808.37 crore In
2016-17 to T2927.39 crore in 2017-18 showing a rise of 4.249 percent primarily due to increase of

Operating expenditure and Establishment expenditure,

G. Financial assistance to Non-Government Organizations

Council provides grants-in-aid to NGOs/ schools, etc. The quantum of grants-in-aid provided by
NDMEC to different institutions during the last five years was asunder:

Table 1.11: Grants-in-aid by the Council (T in lakh)
5. No. | Name of body 2017-18 | 2016-17 | 2015-16 | 2014-15 | 2013-14
1 MNavyug School Society 4840.83 4515 [ 4157.63 | 3536.08 | 338237
2 R.M. Arya Girls Pn‘m E!iml. Hall 2650 30.5;5‘ 30.59 25,70 43,15
3 Nirmal Primary School, Kata House 106,30 | 101656| 99.97| 8478 88.00
4 R.M. Girls Primary School, No. | 96.74 B4.80| 87.47| 77.83 70.00
5 Subsidy for Rain water Harvesting 142.14 95.68| 84.94 NA NA
[ Soclal and Cultural Organization/NGOs 11.36 11.00| 1154| 12.00 14.55
T Samaj Kalyan Samit 164.54 85.39| 121.36| 117.34 | 157.64
8 Subsidies for electric water charges for 10.00 1000| 1000| 10.00 10.00
dhobi ghats
9 Anirmal Birth Control Society 16.96 18.14| 20.00| 20.00 10.00
10 Nutrition — Mid day Meals 75.38 | 149.55| 150.00| 149.63 | 122.56
11 Rebate on Energy Charges 176 0.79 0.41 HA NA
Total 5492.61 | 5103.57 |4774.61 | 4033.36 | 389831

* The grants-in-aid provided by the Council increased from ¥5103.57 lakh in 2016-17 to

©5492.61lakhin 2017-18, depicted an increase of 7.62 percent.
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H. Surplus & Reserve Funds
MDMC has various segment funds. These funds are accretions of surplus revenues within the NDMC
fund as scgments. The position of these funds during 2017-18 was as under:

Table 1.12 ; Surplus & Reserve Funds [ Im crone)
51. | Description Opening Additions Expenditure | Closing
No., Balance | during the year | during the year | Balance
1. | Electricity Fund

(i) Regulatory Reserve Fund 5.00 = - 5.00

{il} Depreciation Reserve Fund 31267 = 4.37 30820

Total Ebectricity Fund 317.67 - 4.37 313.30
2. | Water Supply & Sewerage Fund

(i) DRF 299,23 - 2.30 296,93
3. Estate Furd

(i) Comm, Building Fund 367.39 - 1.76 36563

(i1} Trans. Market Fund 102.37 6.60 1.36 107.61

(i) DRF 381.81 - 0.75 381.06

{iv) Public Art Fund 5.00 - - 5.00

Total Estate Fund 856.57 .60 387 455,30
4. | Employee Fund

(i} Pension Fund 24746 350,00 331.41 976,05

(i) Staff Welfare Fund 15.78 5.00 4,98 15.80

Total Employee Fund SB3.24 385,00 236,39 991.85
5 | General Fund

{i) Cash in Hand 37763 - = 37763

(i) Investment General Fund 4613.07 T04.57 - 5317.94

Total General Fund 499070 T04.87 - 5695.57
NDMC Fund [1#2+3+345) 742741 1076.47 346,53 8156.95

The Actuarial valuation for pension and retirement benefits as on 31° March 2017 amounted to
73422.53 crore but only 7947.46 crore was kept In Pension Fund as on 1" April 2017 and during
2017-18 net of only T28.59 crore was added making it 976.05 crore, even though the liability on
this account was many times higher.

I. Analysis of budgetary projections

The budget presents three sets of figures (a) actual for the preceding year, [b) revised estimates for the
current year, and () budget estimates for the ensuing financial year. This section discusses the variations
in different components of the finances of the Councilwith reference tothe budgetary projections.
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.1.  Actualcollection of revenue vis-3-vis revised estimates
The actual collection of revenue receipts against revised estimates during the last five years was as

Lnncher:
Table 1.13 Actual collection of revenue vis-d-vis revised estimates {2 in crore
Year Revised Actual revenue | Increase/decrease Percentage
estimates recelpts owver RE Increase over RE
2017-18 3183.52 2128.72 - 54,80 -1.72
2016-17 2961.24 2996.11 34.87 1.17
2015-16 2890.71 2920.65 29,94 1.03
2014-15 2670.93 27371.27 66.34 2.48
2013-14 2490.64 2382.40 - 108.24 -4.35

s There was shortfall in actual receipt by 754.80 crore over the revised estimated Inter-alia due
to sharp decrease in interest income on investments.

1.1.2 In respect of the following 15 functions, the shortfall in receipts as comparcd to revised
estimates ranged from T11964.93 lakh to ¥7.98 lakh during 2017-18; the actual revenue recelpts
during 2017-18 were less than the revised estimates by ¥232.23 crore in the 15 functions as shown
intable below:

Table 1.14: Shortfall in recelpts (7 in thousand)
S.Ne. | Function Code | Description R.E. Receipts Shartfall
1. B Estate 509560 4013067 1196493
2. 3 Finance Accounts and Audit 4342250 3534510 347280
3. 52 Sewerage TIOS00 480637 29063
4. 51 Water Supply 1627205 1436232 1904973
5. 55 Other Taxes SO3S00 T33060 170440
6. 82 Education 954006 876870 78117
i 42 Public Comaenicnce S S0 42741 12559
g. 21 Roads and Pavements 78175 65305 11780
9. 7 Stores and Purchase 18400 10190 8210
10. 35 Community/Marriage Centre 46050 40672 5378
11. 56 Amusemaent : 33050 28458 4591
12, 31 Fublic Health 10600 65903 3647
13. 12 Building Regulations 12510 11575 931
14, 2 Administration BBST2 ]5741 331
15, 41 Solid Waste Management 2080 2182 798
Total 14152048 | 11829707 2322341

Major shortfall in receipt with respect to revised estimate was in 4 functions (Estate, Finance
Accounts and Audit, Sewerage, Water Supply).
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1.1.3 Receipts with reference to revised estimates were higher in the following cases ranging from
1.42 percent to 67.36 percent.

Table 1.15: Excess collections of receipts [T in thousand)
5 Function | Function Description Revised | Receipts|Increase with | Percentage
Ne. Code Estimates | 2017-18| reference to incrEkse

[Rewenue) Revised |  wr to RE

2017-18 Estimates

1. 14 Encroachment Removal 20800 63730 42930 67.36
2. 58 Municipal Markets S5080 130521 35441 27.15
3. 21 Property Taxes SEO0O2 | TL11006 1510983 21,25
4, &l Parks and Gardens 4920 5976 1056 17.67
5. 11 City and Town Planning 160940 175493 14544 E.29
£. 8 Workshops 1310 1336 26 1.95
1. 81 Electricity 11782146 | 11951991 1659845 1.43

1.1.4 Actual collection of Tax Revenue vis-a-vis Revised Estimates

The actual collection of tax revenue vis-a-vis revised estimates during the last five years was as
under:

Table 1.16: Actual collection of tax revenue vis-d-vis revised estimates [ in crore)
Year Revised Actual tax Increase(+)/ Percentage increase(+)/
estimates revenue decrease (-} over RE decrease (<) over RE
201718 514.35 T84.29 169,94 2166
2016-17 60719 B4 7.58 40.39 665
2015-16 Sd5.00 550,29 25,29 4.82
2014-15 497.72 480,09 -17.63 3,54
2013-14 d68.19 45587 =12.32 263

# There was an increase of 27,66 percent during 2017-18 in the actual collection of tax revenue
with reference to the revised estimates.

1.1.5 Actual collection of Non-tax Revenue vis-3-vis Revised Estimates

The actual collection of non-tax revenue vis-a-vis revised estimates during the last five years was as
under:

Table 1.17 : Actual collection of non-tay revenue vis-3-vis revised estimates [T in crane)
Year Revised | Actual non-tax Increase{+}/ Percentage increase(s)/
estimates revenue decrease (-} over RE decrease (-) over RE
2017-18 | 243103 2246.51 {-) 184,52 {-)7.59
2016-17 | 2267.75 2257.48 {-)10.27 (-} 0.45
2015-16 | 228097 2290.65 9.68 0.42
2014-15 HE0.31 217932 5.01 4. 76
2013-14 | 1951.68 1865.89 (-}B5.79 (=)4.40

# The actual non-tax revenue collections during 2017-18 were 7.59 percent less than the revised
estimates. The shortfall was largely due to decrease in Sale of Water B Sewerage and income from
Interest on Investments.
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I.1.6 Actual revenue expenditure vis-i-vis revised estimate
The actual expenditure vis-3-vis revised estimates during 2013-14 10 2017-18 was asunder;

Table 1.18 Actual expenditure vis-3-vis revised estimate (revenue) (% in crore)
Year Revised Estimates | Actual Revenue Expenditure | Excess(+)/ Saving(-) | Percentage
2017-18 3178.14 2927.39 =) 250.75 [-) 7.89
2016-17 2958.57 2808.37 (=) 150.20 (-) 5.08
2015-16 2885.38 2868.12 (-) 17.26 (-) 0.60
2014-15 2665.14 2826.97 161.83 6.07
2013-14 2489.46 2389.74 (-) 99.72 (-} 4.01

* Actual Expenditure viz.-a-viz. revised estimates was less by ¥250.75 and T150.20 Crore during
2017-18 & 2016-17 respectively.

Graph 1.8 : Actual Revenue Expenditure viz-a-viz revised estimate

7500 # Revised
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1500 - — —_ —_—
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201314 201415 2015-16 201617 2017-18

s The actual revenue expenditure for the year 2017-18 was 72927.39 crore against revised
estimate of ¥3178.14 crore. The expenditure for 2017-18 thus remained below the revised
estimates by ¥250.75 crore (7.89 percent).

1.L1.7 Savingsincomparison to revised estimates

§

Maximum under-utilization of Revised Estimates (RE) was observed in the following 10 functions
during 2017-1B as shown below:

Table 1.19: Less expenditure Incurred against revised estimates (¥ In Thousand)
5 | Code | Function Rervised Extimates (2017-18) Actual Expenditure (2017-18) Undar
No.| No. | Description Revenwe| Capital Total | Rewenue | Capital Total | Utilization
of R.E.
1. | Bl | Electricity 10851522 | 820014 | 11681936 | 10411183 | 483519 | 10594702 | 1087234
(2. | 2 | Adeninistration 9393023| 173156 | S566179 | 8914656 | 161964 | SOTE60 ARI559
3. | 82 | Education 1937525 | 142222 | 2080247 | 1684428| 103871 | 1788259 91548 |
4. 52 SEWITRR IDEID'_BE E-lﬁlﬂ 1146713 EbFEI0 35505 9!1:.!56 243317
S | 51 | Water Supply 1585624 72154 | 1657818 | 1353985 E4415 | 1437400 130418
6. | 21 | Roadsand 096833 | 433613 | 1430446 | 945453 | 294181 | 1239634 | 190812 |
Pavernents
7| 41 Solid Waste 1544454 5563 1550017 | 13B2E60 3023 | 1385883 164134
Mnnagemeni
& L 61 1 Parks oo Gardens [ IOFE0ES TI300 | J1S0400 | G434 SHEGY | 1OCERIG L 143093 |
S| 6 | Estate 154750] 194803 | 349c53 | qgmesy| 13396 | Je0947|  gmcoe |
10.] 58 | Municipal Macket 195420 68303 J63T7I3 | 140761 ) 34928 175680 RE034
Total 2E7E007S | 2096966 | 30877041 | T6ATEISA | 1392632 | 2TETOBE6 | 3006155

Under-utilization with reference to RE ranging from ¥108.72 crore to ¥8.80 crore, which shows that
budget estimate was not prepared properly.
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I.1.8 Excess expenditure in comparison with revised estimates

There was excess expenditure with reference to RE in the following 5 functions during 2017-18 as
shown below:

Table 1.20: Excess exponditure incurred agalnst Revised Estimates [% in Thousand)
% tﬁﬂll-uﬂrﬁmbﬂﬂhllm Mhﬂlnfm!tﬂiﬂ} sl !!ﬂﬂrgt Excodd | K of under
Mo | Ho. Revenisg | Capital Totsl | Reveros | Capital Total | Lmilization | Utiliestion

of RE.| wrLR.E
1. | 11 |3y and Town Manning 5486 | TER13R | BITSE 55068 | 1091922 | 1146551 345033 =023
& | 43 | Vieterinaty Serdoed a7 0 3TET YEELG | 11417 5113% Tl -1701
3, | 72 |Wellare of Children FLE1D 1500 334l s 1 S5535% 1347 =111
4, | A7 |Vieal Stathaac 16357 1] 18357 16827 13| 15840 443 =155
5. | 15 |trade Ukense 117 o| 1ny 1835 o] 13 122 <270 |

Total 171739 | 761532 | 933271 | 168176 | 1104086 | 117262 | 338990

# Excess expenditure over Revised Estimate ranged between 40.23 percent to 2.70 percent with
maximum being in City B Town Flanning.

J. Rushof Expenditure

As per Rule 56(3) of General Financial Rules 2005, rush of expenditure particularly in the closing
months of financial year shall be regarded as a breach of financial regularity and should be avoided.
Contrary to this, large expenditure was incurred in the month of March and in the last quarter of the
financial year. A few instances of rush of expenditure with very large expenditure in term of
percentage are givien below:

Table 1.21: Rush of cxpenditure in month of March-2018 (% in Theusands)
5. | Function | Function Description Total expenditure |  Expenditure Percentage
Mo. | No. Inturred In March expenditure

in March
1. 73 Welfare OF Aged 8423 459149 5839
2. 52 Sewerage 5033596 Si2ia2 5671
3 . Adminlstration 2076520 4347051 54.50
4, a8 Municipal Markets 175689 BEs53 50,40
5. & Slum Improvement 2140 Q16 4182
G. 25 Storm Water Drains 45797 16414 3534
7. 56 Armusement 136445 40268 29,51
B. 71 Welfare Of Women 49300 11040 2139

Tatal 10397819 5621453
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Similarly large sum was spent in the last quarter as per details given below.

Table 1.22: Rush of expenditune in the last quarter (lanuan-2018 to March-2018)  (f In Thousands)

5. | Function | Function Description Total Expenditure % of total
Mo. | No. expenditure during eipenditure
last quarter | incurred during

last quarter

1. 22 Sewerage 903396 723038 87,79
2. 73 Welfare Of Aged 8423 4919 <839
3, z Administration 9076520 5159714 56.85
4. 58 Muncipal Markets 175680 92834 56.25
5. 75 Slum Improvement 2140 1079 50.42
6. 56 Armusement 136445 65592 4837
7. i1 City & Town Planning 11469491 SETSTE 45,99
8. 1 Welfare OFf Women 493059 21809 44,23
9. 25 Storm Wataer Draing 45797 15450 42,47

Total 11544810 GEIZAGL

The utilization of budget provisions ranged from 22.39 percent to 58.39 percent in the month of
March-2018 for cight functions (Table No.1.21) whereasin the last quarter of financial year 2017-18
for nine functions (Table No.1.22) it ranged from 42.47 percent to 87.79 percent which does not
portray sound Financial Management practice relating to expenditure in NOMC for the year 2017-18.
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CHAPTER-2

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS OF NDMC

Audit Comments on the Annual Accounts of the Council

AUDIT REPORT OF THE CHIEF AUDITOR UNDER SECTION 59 OF THE NEW DELHI MUNICIPAL
COUNCIL ACT, 1954 ON THE ACCOUNTS OF THE NEW DELHI MUNICIPAL COUNCIL (NDMC) FOR
THEYEARENDING 31"MARCH 2018.

1. We have audited the Balance Sheet ason 31° March 2018 and Income & Expenditure Statement,
Receipt and Payment Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year 2017-18 of New Delhi
Municipal Council (NDMC) under Section 59 of the NDMC Act 1994, The administration is
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial Statements in accordance
with the generally accepted accounting principles in India for Local Bodies which inter alia comprise
of National Municipal Accounting Manual [NMAM) and Accounting Standards for Local Bodies, This
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due tofraud or error.

2. Audit has been conducted in accordance with the generally accepted auditing principles in India
for public entities. These principles require that Audit is planned and performed to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Financial 5tatements are free from material
misstatements. An Audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the Financial 5tatements and assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by the administration, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
Financial Statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our findings.

3. Based onouraudit, subject to the disclaimer, we report that:

s The Balance Sheet as on 31° March 2018 and the Income & Expenditure Statement for the
period 2017-18 dealt with by this Report have been drawn up in the approved format as per
NMAM.

s The books of accounts and relevant records have been maintained by NDMC except Bank
Reconciliation Statements [BRS), as required under NMAM in 50 far as it appears from our test
check of such books,

s We have obtained the information and explanations, except for some documentsfinformation
related to License Fee from Hotels [Afc Code: 1301003), which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were required for the purpose of our audit.

* Control risk (the probability that a material misstatement may not either be prevented from
entering entity’s financial information or may not be detected and corrected by the internal
control system of the entity), remains a matter of concernin NDMC to that extent.

Disclaimers:

Detoction risk is the possibility that an Audit may not detect material misstatement in the
Financial Statements; this remains high as resources (human and technological) made available to
Audit are completely inadequate to fulfill the Audit mandate. Responsibility of preventing fraud lies
with the administration of NDMC which has certified that there was no loss 1o NDMC due to fraud,
embezzlement and theft during theyear 2017-18,
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4.1 BALANCESHEET

4,1.1 LIABILITIES
{1} CURRENTLIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
[A) MNonproviding of liability of 7821.17 crore towards Provident Fund

MNate &{l) of Schedule-22 of Financial Statements of NDMC states that “the Labilities under the
Provident Fund account of the Employee are not to be incorporated in the accounts of NDMC”,
However, para-3.14(b) of NMAM specifies that inter alia Provident Fund [PF) deduction from the
salary shall be recognized as liability in the same period in which the corresponding salary i
recognized as expense. Further, as per NMAM, Para 3.14 [CED) formation of Trusts shall be
considered for management of PF and it will be the responsibility of the Urban Local Body to form
the trusts and meet the shortfall of the fund if any; PFfmoney shall be invested as per the guidelines
applicable to any Employee Provident Fund. Audit observations are as follows:

{a) In NDMC no such trust has been formed and liability on account of PF of employees has been
kept off the balance sheet of NODMC. Further, the PF money was also not invested as per guidelines
of Employees Provident Fund Organization. It is also noticed that as on 31° March 2018 the total
liability on account of PF was ¥821.17 crores whereas investment depicted against it was only
T802.39 crore. Keeping PF liability off the balance sheet has resulted in understatement of liability
and current assets of NDMC.

(b} If the Board of Trustees are unable to pay interest at the rate declared for Employee’s Provident
Fund by the Government of India then para 14.30 of NMAM should apply i.e. in situations wherein
the interest earned is lower than the stipulated rate payable to the employees, the shortfall in
paymaent of interast shall be made good by the Urban Local Body. During the year 2017-18 interest
payable to employees an the PF amounted to ¥59.83 crores, however, interest earned from
irvestment of PF was not caleulated on accrual basis. Thus any excess amount payable if any (than
earned on PF investment) which is chargeable to Income and Expenditure Account was not
ascertainable in Audit,

(C) As per section B0 (C) of the Income Tax Act contribution made by an emplovee towards

recognized PF (subject to specified limit) is deductable from income while computing income tax. A

recognized PF is defined under the schedule IV of the Income Tax Act has to inter alia fulfill the

following conditions:

= The fund shall be vested in two or more trustees or in the Official Trustee under a trust which
shallnot be revocable, save withthe consent of all the beneficiaries.

+  The fund shall consist of contributions received by the trustees, of accumulations, thereof, and
of interest credited in respect of such contributions and accumulations and of securities
purchased therewith and of any capital gains arising from the transfer of capital assets of the
fund, and of no other sums.

= The employer shall not be entitled to recover any sum whatsoever from the fund, save in cases
where the employee Is dismissed for misconduct or voluntarily leaves his employment
otherwise than on account of ill-health or other unavoidable cause before the expiration of the
term of service specified in this behalf in the regulations of the fund.

* The accumulated balance due to an employee shall be payable on the day he ceases to be an
employee of the employer maintaining the fund.
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Exemptions under 80{C) of the Income Tax Act can be availed against the PF contributions if it is
notified by a gazette notification of the Central Gevernment. However, no copy of such notification
could be provided by the Finance and Account Department of NDMC, In the absence of the above,
the income tax deduction allowed in the form 16 to the NDMC provident fund subscribers was notin
compliance with the Section 80(C) of the Income Tax Act governing the same.

Mot having a scparate PF trust and its associated control mechanism/ independence, not only
leaves the interests of the employees unprotected butis also not incompliance with NKAM.
Accounts Department stated that this observation pertains to Fund Section. Thus no relevant reply
Was given,

(B} Non Providing of full Liability towards Pension payable to employees

Liabilities: Other liabilities

Employee Liabilities: T2011.50 crore
The National Municipal Accounts Manual comprehensively details the accounting policies,
procedures, guidelines designed to ensure correct, complete and timely recording of municipal
transactions and produce accurate and relevant financial reports. Accordingly, the manual is
required to be adopted and followed by the various State Governments (Municipal Corporations)
while drafting their state specific municipal accounts manuals. Para no. 3.14{e] relating to Emplovese
Related Transaction of National Municipal Accounts Manual stipulates that separate funds may also
be formed for meeting the pension and other retirement benefits including Gratuity and Leave
Encashmient etc. It was further stipulated that contribution towards pension and other retirement
benefit funds shall be recognized as an expense and a liability, Respective organization was required
to define the rate of contribution. One basis for such rate could be at the rate generally prescribed
for state government employees on deputation,
However, it was observed thotinstead of creating provisions on actuarial or estimation bosis, NOMC
was meeting the refated actual retirement expenses on cash basis under establishment expenses.
This issue was raised in the Annual Audit Report for the yeor 2016-17, wherein it was kighlighted
that though the ectuariol valuation for pension and retirernent benefits os on 317 March 2017
amounted to T3422.63 crore against which pension fund amounting to only T947.45 crore was
shown under the account code 3101041 as on 31" March 2017; resultantly there was short provision
ofT2475.18 crore.
During the year the issue was again reviewed and it was observed that as on 31" March 2018 under
the account code 3101041 (Pension Fund) an amount of only $976.01 crore was shown as available.
However, the details of any estimation done to assess the quantum of amount to be provided (for
superannuation and other post retirement benefits) on actuarial basis as on 31° March 2018 was
not provided to Audit. In absence of the same the amount required to be provided as on 31% March
2018 towards retirement benefits remains unverifiable and consequently by how much amount the
surplus aswell as Municipal (General) fund is overstated not ascertainable.
Further it was abserved that the amount of T976.01 crore (shown as earmarked for pension fund) is
a part of Municipal (General) Fund as on 31 March 2018; in this regard, it is pertinent to mention
that any amount which has been provided for a specific purpose should have been shown as
earmarked fund indicating the purpose of creation of such a fund. Thus the practice of showing this
amount under Municipal [General fund) needs to be reviewed. it was also observed that for the
amount which was invested for pension, the interest earned out of the same was not depicted
separately. This was not in compliance with Para 3.20{g) of the Mational Municipal Accounting
Manual accarding to which income on investments made from Special Funds and Grants under
specific Scheme shall be recognized and credited to Special Fund and Grant whenever acorued and
onlhyto be utilized for that specific purpose. This practice also needs to be reviewed.
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Accounts Department stated (September-2019) that the matter of formulation of Pension
Regulations is pending with Central Govt. and likely to be finalizedin Financial Year 2019-20. Thus no
action has been taken in this regard for the year 2017-18.

(] SalaryPayable-{3501101)-718.07 crores

A reference is invited to Schedule B-21, point no. 4 wherein, it has been disclosed "NDMC is
following March to February basis for recognizing salaries for the financial year™ Hence, the
Establishment Expenses including employee cost namely; salary, bonus, employee welfare, other
related costs and other allowances are recognized as and when they are due for payment on
drawing of Pay Bill{l.e. at the month end).

During scrutiny of ledger in respect of Salary Payable, it was observed that as on 31% March 2018,
T1E.07 crore was payable whereas in the March-February basis for payment of salary there should
not be any huge outstanding of salary ason 31" March 2018.

The Accounts Department stated that it totally agreed that liability on account of salary, bonus
should be disbursed at the year end and the same is being followed. The salary showing payable as

on 31" March 2018 does not pertain to FY 2017-18. It is being carried forward from previous years
due tosome technical error and thiswill be rectified.

Thus this liability is overstated by the same amount.

(D) DemandofGovt. of India not provided for Liability

Scrutinyg of records revealed that there was demand of Government of India, Ministry of Housing
and Urban Affairs, Land and Development Office, New Delhi in respect of three hotels [Taj Man
Singh, Hotel Bharat and Hotel Le-Meridian) to the tune of 3801.03 crore which has not been
provided as liability in the Financial Statements for the year 2017-18.

The Accounts Department stated (September-2019) that a liability of ¥801.02 crore in respect of
misuse charges raised by LEDD on certain hotels has been mentioned in 2018-19, The reply is
irrelevant as comment pertains to financial year 2017-18,

This has resulted inunderstatement of Current Liabilities by T801.03 crore in financial year 2017-18.
4.1.2 ASSETS

(1) FIXED ASSETS
(A) Deficient disclosure regarding title of Fixed Assets

Naote 1.1(1) in Schedule B-22 (Notes to Accounts) states that records establishing legal title in respect
of some of the fixed assets are not available. The note is deficient as it does not state the particulars
of fixed assets which are in possession of NDMC but legal title thereof is not available with it. Thus
Financial Statements do not give the correct and full information regarding Fixed Assets to the
reader of the Financial Statement. The point was also ralsed during 2014-2015, 2015-2016 and
2016-17 but no corrective action has been taken.

(B) Capital-Work-in-Progress; T2188.76 crore (Schedule B-11b)

As per Significant Accounting Polices 5(1) Fixed Assets stipulates that the assets acquired by way of
purchase or construction are valued at their cost of acquisition or cost of construction on
completion. Whereas S(Il] relating to Capital Work in Progress [CWIP) stipulates that capital
expenditures attributable to a particular asset are kept under CWIP till completion or construction
of asset or project. Notes to Accounts (20017-18) 1{1){vi) states that amount existing under the CWIP
has not been capitalized [since 2004-05 onwards) due to non-availability of data related to each
asset despite best efforts. Thus the note to accounts is not in compliance with the accounting policy.
As a result the Gross Block of Fixed Assets as on 31" March 2018 was only T354,90 crore and CWIP
was T2188.76 crore, In this regord the details of working (if any) done by the manogement, to
ascertoin the impact of non-copitelizing the assets [since 2004-05) wos colled for but wos not
provided to Audit. In obsence of such details the impact on financial statement due to Ron-
capitalization and consequent non-charging of depreciation since 2004-05 onwards to 2017-18 on
gssets constructed/completed remains unverifiable in Audit.

34
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()  Capital Expenditure from Fund : Account Code: 490 : 7231.97 crore

Misclassification of Capital Expenditure on Fixed Assets under “Capital Expenditure from Fund®
instead of classifying the same under respective heads of accounts of fixed assets. These funds are
received from MP/MLA fund ctc.

An amount of $231,.97 Crores depicted under the head of account ‘Capital Expenditure from Fund’
comprises of fixed assets put to use, This has resulted in overstatement of Fixed Assets and Surplus
of Income over Expenditure and understatement of expenditure for the year 1o the extent of
depreciation of these Fixed Assets, The issue was also ralsed during 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17
but no remedial action has been taken so far,

(i}  OtherAssets (Schedule B-19)-1141.03 crore

As per NMAM (para 12.7.e&f) “Deposits received under Deposit work” shall be treated as liability
till such time the project for which money received, is completed. Upon completion of project, the
costincurred against it shall be reduced from liability.

However, as on 31° March 2018 the projects which have been completed during the last four years
have not been adjusted, resulting in inflated Assets and Liabilities and non booking of revenue
earned there on as service margin, The above observation was issued during the audit of 2016-17
Accounts also.

Accounts Department stated (September-2019) that action for pending balances as on 31" March
2017 under liability and expenditure side of Deposit Work has been nullified as Executive Division(s)
has been instructed to adjust the liability with expenditure after completion of deposit work.,
However no such records were provided to Audit forverification. Moreover the reply isirrelevant as
comment pertains to financial year 2017-18.

(V)] GrossBlock
Land (Schedule B-11) - 72,67 crores

During the Annual Accounts Audit for the year 201817, issue relating to non-capitalization of land
valuing ¥14.77 crore allotted to NDMC by LE:DO was raised for which amount has also been paid in
Aupust-2016, twas assured by the NDMC that the corrective action inthis regard will be taken upin
the year 2017-18, However, no action in this regard was found to be taken in the year 2017-18,
Consequently, the CWIP is overstated and Fixed Assets are understated by T14.77 crore.

Accounts Department stated (September-2019) that said transaction could not be traced and there
was no reply from the concerned division in spite of follow up. Resultantly the figure shown in the
Balance Sheet against Land remains understated to that extent,

(V) CurrentAssets
(A} CashandBankBalances

Bank Reconciliation Statements (BRS) as on 31" March 2018 were not provided to Audit. In the
absence of BRS following risks cannot be Ruled out.
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de‘mts ﬂm m:munt nf HDME and,.l’n-r mahes the parmmt o unauthm'i:ed person, it cannok be
detected inthe absence of BRS.

. psite ed by B3 Account: In case money is depicted
a5 d:pnsm:-d in cmh h-nni: hut is aclumhr nat dcpu-med or money is deposited but credit is given
to the account of wrong party it cannot be detected without BRS.

* Differences between Bank Pass book and Cash book remaining detected: Differences in the
closing balance of cash book and bank pass book on any given date cannot be detected in
absence of BRS.

i3 - etected: In case any cheque isissued but not presented to
banl: fnr pawnent l.'refure explr'gr date. the list of such cheques can only be prepared through BRS
and steps taken accordingly; in the absence of BRS this verification is not possible.

I 3 ; aining ected: In case bank levies any kind of
thargﬁand dehlts the a::u:clunt lhe same will remaln u nvenﬁedmthe absence of BRS.

(B} SundryDebtors [Receivables)-T6038.76 crores.
(a) Departurefrom NMAM in Depiction of Sundry Debtors.

Para 3.6 (i} of NMAM stipulates that in respect of the demand of the Property Tax outstanding
beyand twoyears, pravision shall be made on the fallowing terms:

Outstanding for 2 years - 3 years 25 percent
Qutstanding for 3years -4 years S0 percent
Outstanding for 4 years -5 years 75 percent
Outstanding for beyond 5 years 100 percent

However, Schedule B-15 in respect of Sundry Debtors Receivables has not been prepared in
accordance with the requirement of the NMAM to depict proportionate age-wise analysis of
Sundry Debtors. As a result, accumulated provision of T2415.14 crore for doubtful receivable has
been made on a rough estimation. Although Note 6 [m) of Schedule B-22 discloses this, the same
Mote is being preduced for more than 5 years’ without any remedial action. Finance and Account
Department accepted it during the audit for the year 2016-17 and stated that the issue will be taken
care ofinthe Accounts for the year 2017-18 but no corrective action has been taken.

Accounts Department stated that [September-2019) due to not having appropriate information
regarding age-wise receivables from the concerned major revenue earning Departments, the
depiction is incorrect and concerned Departments have been asked to prepare age-wise
receivables. Thus no concrete action has been taken in this regard.

ib) Accumulated provisions against Doubtful receivable ; (=) T6088. T crore
During the course of audit ontest check basls, it was observed that:

1. As per “Schedule B-15" - Sundry Debtors [receivables), the total amount receivable as on
31" March 2018 was depicted as T6088.76 crore, whereas the year wise position and caleulation
provided regarding provision against debtors in the same financial statement the total receivable
shown ason 31" March 2018 was 15637.35 crore.

Mote 2: In the AAR - 2017 this period was mentioned 4 years now it is 5 years.
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2. Similarly the accumulated provisions for doubtful receivable as per financial statement as on
31" March 2018 were depicted as $2415.14 crore (Schedule B-15a), whereas the year wise position
and calculation provided regarding provision against debtors along with the same financial
statement indicates that the provisions for doubtful debts provided against the same were
12500.80 crore. Thus the provisions as per "Schedule B-15(2)* were ¥85.66 crore than the
provisions as shown in the year wise calculation furnished.,

3. As per details [year wise) of provision against debtors for the year 2017-18, against the total
receivable towards Electricity amounting to 77,85 crore and Enforcement amounting to T21.35
crore, the amount shown as provided for ason 31" March 2018 was ¥138.63 crore and T24.38 crore
respectively. Thus, the amount provided for was in excess of receivable by ¥60.78 crore (Electricity)
and T3.04 crore (Enforcement) respectively. As the amount provided for cannot exceed the amount
receivables, this needs to be reviewed specially due to the fact that in absence of details of above,
which were called for but not furnished to audit, the authenticity of these figures and impact of the
same anthe financial statement remainunverifiable in Audit.

Accounts Department stated [September-2019) that action for correction has been taken in current
Firancial Year 2018-19. The reply is irrelevant as the comment pertains to financial year ended on
31" March 2018.

(€} Receivablefrom other sources : T448.74 crore

As per Account code 4314001 [receivable from other sources Accrued interest from General Fund
Investment], the accrued interest on FORs was T446.75 crore as on 31" March 2018, Whereos as per
the detalled calculation furnished to audit by the Accounts wing, the emount was T438.04 crore.
Thus there was o difference of 151, 29 crore (T498.04 crore - T446. 75 crore).

Accounts Department stated (September-2019) that the reason of difference is only due to the
change in method of calculation adopted by Audit and Investment Branch and from the FY 2018-19,
it has beon attempted to work out the accrual figure more accurately.

The reply is not convincing as the original ledger figures of T446.75 crore does not match with the
figures given in the compiled calculation sheet (2438 crore) provided by the Accounts/Investment
Branchand thus remain unrecanciled.

Further test check conducted in respect of Accrued interest colculotion submitied to Audit, revealed
that the quarter in which an investment is maode, instead of recognizing the interest an the basis af
days for which sum remained invested, interest acerued is recognized for the whole of such quarter.
This practice Is not in line with the accounting principles of accrval o5 well s matching concept of
accounting, hernce needs review.

The Accounts Department stated that in the current FY 2018-19, it has been attempted to work out
the accrued interest on “days” basis. The reply of the Accounts Department is irrelevant as the
comment pertains to financial year 2017-18.

[d) Government Buildings (Service Charges) : 74344.32 Crore
improperdepiction of property tax receivable from Government Bulldings

Though the above receivable of T4344.32 crore 3z on 31° March 2018 pertains to Property Tax in
respect of private properties and Service Charges in respect of Government Buildings but the whaole
amount has been depicted as if the entire amount is receivable only from Government Buildings.
This pointwas raised during 2016-17 Accounts audit also but no action has been taken.

{e) (i) A reference is invited to para No.4.1.3(B) printed in Chapter-2 of the Annual Audit Report
forthe year ended March-2017 wherein it was pointed out that there was miscalculation of interest
earned to the tune of T28.45 crore. During scrutiny of Accounts for the year 2017-18 it has been
observed that no corrective entry has been passed in the Accounts for the year 2017-18. This has
resulted in overstatement of “Sundry Debtors’, "Municipal (General) Fund’ by T28.45 crore.,
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Accounts Department stated that as on 31° March 2019, the amount of FDRs shown in system
matches with the hard copies of FORs available with NOMC and as far as miscaleulation of interest in
2016-17 is concerned, it seems that the same might have been corrected. Reply is not acceptable as
Department not only failed to provide any specific document depicting that corrective action has
beentaken.

(i} During the year 2014-15 an amount of T5.86 crore was credited by AXIS bank; out of this
amount an amount of 15,40,95,639/- was related to the TDS deducted by the respective bank on
the interest paidfaccrued and 70.45 crore related to short payment made by the bank in the
previgus period. NDMC insisted that instead of making the payment in that way, at the time of
maturity full payment along with interest may be paid to the NDMC, Bank agreed to the request of
the NODMC and accordingly the amount so credited in the Account of NDMC was returned to the
AXIS Bank in the maonth of May-2016. However, it was observed that an amount of 75,40,95,639/-
was still appearing (2017-18) under investments of 75317.94 crore as on 31" March 2018. As the
amount has already been returned to the respective Bank, the same should not be included under
investments. Thus investments were gverstated by 25,40,95,639/-.

The Accounts Department stated that the correction to this effect has been done in the Financial
Year ie. 2018-19. The reply is irrelevant as the comment pertains to financial year ended on
31" March 2018.

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
4,1.3 INCOME
[A)Tax Revenue = Incorrect inclusion of T1030.99 crore as income from Property Tax

Prudence and sound accounting principle reguires that revenue should not be recognized in the
financial statements when there is uncertainty in the collection of the same. The Technical Guide on
Accounting and Financial Reporting by the Urban Local Bodles issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India stipulates that if there are significant delays in realization of Property Tax,
Property Tax should be recognized on modified accrual basis. Thus Property Tax pertaining to a
financial year and actually collected during such financial year or within a reasonable period after
the end thereof (say two months) should be recognized as revenue of the financial year while
Property Tax collected subsequent to the cut-off date should be recognired as revenue for the
period inwhich the amount is actually collected.,

NDMC had raised a revised demand of Property Tax during the year 2015-16 based on the revised
Bye-laws of NDMC according to which Annual Rateable Value of an Assessee (DGC) increased from
12.53 crore to T420.54 crore which became the base for arriving at the annual property tax.
However, High court of Delhi vide its order dated 10th August 2017, had struck down the now
impugned Bye-laws as being ultra vires of the NDMC Act as they were in excess of their scope and
ambit powers vested in NDMC under Section 388 (1) A(9) of the NDMC Act.'

These events indicate thot there is significant uncertalnty in uitimote collection of the omount of
Property Tox of T1020.53 crore from the assessee. While deferring collection of revenue in the
manner, an appropriate disclosure of the reasons warranting non-recognition of the revenue should
have been made.

Mote 3: Delh] Golf Club
4: Hon'ble High Court In August-2017 struck down the Bye-lows and followed by
Hon'ble Supreme Court on 22nd January-2019,
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Six other similar cases found on test check basis, provided by the concerned Department, revealed
T60.46 crore is recoverable on accounts of property tax though their recovery is doubtful due to the
reasonstated above.

Due to recognition of this revenue, the Tax Revenue relating to Properties under the Head of
Account 1100103 as well as Sundry Debtors under the Head of Account 4311031 has been
overstated atleast by T1080.99 crore with a similar overstating of NDMC's Surplus or Income over
Expenditure for the year 2017-18.

(B) 3504102 & 3504103 - Water supply & Electricity charges

The above two actount codes shows a credit balance of T2.07 crore [3504102) and 714.75 crore
(3504103) respectively as on 31" March 2018, In this regard in these heads various receipts which
were received in excess than the invoiced value the amount so received in excess should be
adjusted in the next related invoice by reducing the amount of next billfinvoice. However due to
non-integration of billing systern and ABAS system the amount lying in the above two heads is not
adjusted and remained in the above heads as unadjusted. Consequently the revenue remained
understated and liabilities are overstated.,

The Accounts Department stated that the action for adjustment of income received in advance has
been taken in FY 2018-19. Reply is irrelevant as the paint pertains to financial year 2017-18.

[ C)Income: License Fee from Municipal Properties : ©451,31 crore
License Fee from Hotels: [Afc Code 1301003)

Test check of records of Accounts revealed that for license fee from various hotels in the Financial
Statement for the year 2017-18 the depiction was only T7.16 crore (A/fc Code 1301003). However,
further cxamination by Audit revealed that an amount of $29.35 crore pertaining to License Fee
from Hotels was erroneously booked under ‘Damages against Misuse Charges [Afc Code 1303013).
Mareaver, far April-2017 the License Fee receivable from Hotels was not booked at all in the
Accounting system & for May-2017 only a figure of ¥16.05 lakh was booked under “license fees from
Hotels Account”,

Iri this regard Audit had issued requisition asking for total numbers of Estate Premises [dentification
[EPID] in the master list and Audit trail for each and every change that has been made; this
information was not provided to Audit. It was also observed that there was no foolproof system of
timely ralsing of demand reflecting it in the billing system and consequent inclusion in the Financial
statement of NOMC, Further, no information was receined regarding any unreconciled amount as
on 31" March 2018 between license fee recovered in SBI Account of NDMC and in its appropriate
depiction in the correct Account Head.

In view of the above no assurance can be derived that NDMC is correctly raising demand for all the
licensees and collectingitin a timely fashion during the relevant Accounting period.

2.1.4 EXPENDITURE
(A} Operational and Maintenance (Schedule 1-12): ¥1105.15 crore

(1} As per significant Accounting policies No.1 (2017-18), the financial statements of NDMC are
prepared under historical cost basis on accrual basis of accounting, According to the accrual basis
and concept of matching principle, it is reguired that all the related expenses of works exeouted
should be booked in the same financial year. However, during the course of audit on test check basis
it was observed that against the various works which were executed during the year X017-18, the
corresponding liability amounting to ¥59.81 crore was not provided in the books of accounts for the
period ending as on 31" March 2018. Consequently the expenses as well as current liabilities for the
year 2017-18 are understated by T59.81 crore, resultantly surplus of income over expenditure is
overstabed by the same amount,
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(i) Medical bills amounting to ¥6.71 crore received from various hospitals pertaining to 2017-18
were booked in 2018-19 on cash basis and not on acerual basis. This has resulted in understatement
of establishment expensestothat extentin 2017-18.

The Accounts Department stated (September-2019) that the above matter pertaing to Accounts
Department of NDMC and the observation of Audit had already been forwarded to the concerned
Department. Mo action has been taken by the Departmient.

(B) CAPITALWORK IN PROGRESS:
(ACCOUNT CODE: 4124000-05)

During the course of audit on test check basis of above account code relating to capital wark in
progress, it was observed that various items of revenue nature had been included in the above
account code. Resultantly the Capital Work in Progress is overstated and related revenue
expenditure is understated by ¥5.13 crore. Conscquently surplus of income over expenditure is
alsounderstated by the same amount.

4.1.5 OtherComments

[A) Accounting Policy No.S[1)i}in Schedule 21 states that "Depreciation is provided on Straight
Line Method. NOMC has stated that it has followed Depreciation rates followed by Bangalore
Mahanagar Palike” & DERC. However, the depreciation rates of Bangalore Mahanagar Palike
(BMP) are not a public document and thus the rates should have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements of NDMC. In the absence of an appropriate disclosure, the Financial
Statements indicate a departure from Accounting Standard 1 issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India which stipulates for explicit disclosure of Accounting Policies
inthe Financial Statements.

(B) Areference is invited to Note No.6{n) of 5chedule B-22 which stipulates that as per NMAM,
the Chart of common Accounts which should not have any balances for example 4701002,
35011, 25020 and 43130 are still kept pending. The necessary accounting rectifications
would be carried out to set right the adverse balances by the concerned divisions by the next
financial year. The above mentioned note was given during 2016-17 also but no action has
been taken. There is an adverse effect on the Accounts due to non rectification of adverse
balances & it gives an incorrect view of the Financial Statements as balances lying against
these above mentioned Accounts should have been “nil” but are showing balances which is
against the provisions of NMAM .

() NOMC made an investment of ¥200/- crore in NDMC Smart City Limited [NSCL) but NSCL
allotted shares to NDMC worth ¥250/- crore. This discrepancy has not been disclosed in the
accounts for theyear 2017-18.

(D) Note no. 3 relating to Contingent Liabilities stipulates, “the complete information regarding
contingent liabilities as to number of cases pending with various courts and the amount
imvohed therein s not available, There ks no change In contingent liabllity and Department is
not aware if any contingent liability s ocour™

The note further indicates the various heads under consolidated statement of contingent
liabilities as on 31" March 2015 even though the present accounts under audit relates to the
financial year 2017-18 for period ending as on 31" March 2018, Thus the information Is not
updated and accurate,

During the Exit Conference on 10™ January 2020, the Financial Advisor assured to take
rectificatory action on the Audit objections.
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CHAPTER-3

Follow Up on Annual Audit Report and Local Audit Report

(A)Outstanding paras of Annual Audit Report, the detail of which [Department wise) is given
below:-

5.No.| MName of the Department Paras still outstanding
1. Finance & Accounts o7
2. Estate-| 03

Estate-|| 04
3 Property Tax 14
4, Enforcement 14
5 Horticulture 04
6. Civil Engineering 20+ 01* + 02(Review]*"
7 Electrical Engineering 11+ 01* + D2[Review)**
E. Commencial 05
g Personnel 06
10. Architect & Environs o9
11. Medical Services 06
12, Education 06
13. Information Technology 03
14, Municipal Housing o7
15. Public Relation 02
16. Transport 02
17. Power 01
18. Security 02
19. PS0OI 01
20, Welfare 01
21, General Administration 02

Total 143 paras

* General Paragraph on unclaimed deposits (Civil & Electrical Engineering Department) has
been shown in both Department. However, it is taken as one for counting total outstanding paras.

** Review of Contract Management in the Engineering Departments (Civil & Electricity) in AAR

2013-2014 covers Issue Invelving both Civil Engineering & Electrical Engineering Department
hence counted as one outstanding para for each year.
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(B) Outstanding paras of Local Audit Reports [Department wise) given below -

5. Hame of Departrment No. of No. of Paras | Total Mo. of LAR Mo. of
No. outstanding| added upto | (c+d] | Paras settled/
paras ason | 30.11.2020 included in remained
01.09.2018 Annual Audit | outstanding
Report upto -
30.11.2020

(a) | (b) (c) (d) (e) (f [e-F]
01, | Accounts & Finance 158 15 173 = 173
02. | Architect & Environment - - -
03, | Civil Engineering 1274 - 1274 - 1274
4. | Commendal g1 = 0 - &0
05. | Education 1307 - 1307 29 1278
06. | Electricity 1024 - 1024 - 1024
07. | Enforcement 54 - 54 - 54
08, | Estate 213 - 213 - 213
09, | Fire 8s - 88 - g8
10. | General Adminkstration 115 13 132 - 132
11, | Medical Services/ 691 = 631 - 691

Public Health
12. | Horticulture 35 35 - 35
13. | Property Tax 113 - 113 - 113
14. | Information Technology 30 - 50 - 50
15, | Law 29 = 29 = 29
16, | Personmel 635 = 635 - 635
17. | Public Relations 60 . 60 . &0
18, | Security 250 - 250 - 250
19, | Welfare 825 825 - B25
20. | Project 16 - 16 - 16

Total 7021 7049 29 7020
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CHAPTER-4

PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT

Auditon Collection and Treatment of Municipal Solid Waste
4. Introduction

Waste management (or waste disposal) are the activities and actions required to manage waste
from its gencration to its final disposal. This includes the collection, transport, treatment and
disposal of waste, together with monitoring and regulation of the waste management process.
Waste management deals with all types of waste, including industrial, biclogical and household,
Waste management is intended to reduce the adverse effects of waste on human health and the
environment, Wastes are generally classified into Municipal Solid Waste (M5W), Bio-Medical Waste
[BMW]), Construction and Demolition (C&D) waste, e-waste, plastic waste, slaughterhouse waste,
industrial waste and hazardous waste by virtue of their nature. They are also classified as
blodegradable, non- blodegradable, combustible, dry and Inert based on their characteristics.

4.1 Roles and Responsibilities

The Department of Public Health, New Delhi Municipal Council (NDMC) is responsible for the
collection and treatment of Municipal Solid Waste in the NDMC area, NDMC statedly aims to make
its area “Zero Garbage®. In August, 2014, NDMC signed an agreement for collection and
transportation of garbage with M/s. Metrro Waste Handling Pvt. Ltd and deployed a new system for
collection and transportation of garbage where door to door collection of garbage was to be done
through auto-tippers trucks and tri-cycle rickshaws. In this project 26 auto-tippers and 424 tri-cycle
rickshaws, 15 compactors, 10 open tipper trucks, mobile bin washer, repair van, JCBs have been
stated to be deployed in 14 circles for collection and transportation of MSW. These auto tippers
were to be compatible with the mechanical compactors and deposit garbage directly into the
compactor which was to be further compacted at Garbage Transfer Station. High Capacity Wagons
were to take the garbage and eventually dispose it at the waste to energy plant/Compost Plant at
Oxhla. Landfill facility for transportation and disposed off MW was designated at Ghazipur, Delhi.

4.2 Scopeof Audit, its objective, Regulatory framework, methodology

The Ministry of Environment, Forests and Climate Change [MoEFCC) notified (September-2000) the
Municipal 3olid Waste [Management and Handling) Rules, 2000 (M5W Rules, 2000). Subsequently,
MoEFCC amended the MSW Rules, 2000 and introduced Rules for management of biomedical,
plastic, hazardous, CE&D and e-waste, The Solid Waste Management Rules, 2016 superseded [April-
2016) MEW Rules, 2000, Audit for Collection and Treatment of Municipal Solid Waste under NDMC
area covering the period 2014-15 to 2018-19 has been attempted to assess whether the strategy
and planning envisioned for 3olid Waste Management by the NDMC were in accordance with the
extant provisions and supported by an adequate institutional mechanism; whether management of
Municipal Solid Waste and Special Waste [segregation, collection, transportation, processing and
disposal) was effective, efficient, and carried out economically and scientifically; and the risks to
environment posed by waste were identified and minimized.

The audit methodology involved document analysis and responses to audit queries while framing
the conclusions.

Note 5: Tero Waste [garbage) is a set of principles focused on waste prevention that encourages the
redesign of resource life cycles o that all products are reused. The goal [s for no trash to be sent to
landfills, Inclneratars, or the ocean. fero waste system, material will be reused until the optimum
leviel of consumption.
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4.2 Audit Constraints

Rule 39 of GFR regarding submission of records and information stipulates that demand for
information by Audit or Accounts Officer - a subordinate authority shall afford all reasanable
facilities to the Awdit Officer for the discharge of his functions, and furnish fullest possible
information required by him for the preparation of any official account or report, payment and
internal audit. Further, Section 59 (32, 8, 9 & 11) of NDMC Act, 1994 also envisaged that for the
purpase of examination and audit of the accounts of the Council, the Chief Auditor shall have access
to all the acoounts of the Council and to all records and correspondence relating thereto and also
the Chief Auditor may make such queries and observations in relation to any accounts of the Coundil
which he is required in audit and every such query or observations shall be promptly taken into
consideration by the officer or authority.

The Audit on the Collection and Treatment of Municipal Solid Waste Management was taken up in
April-2019. Audit issued B audit requisitions and 13 audit observation memos on the basis of
records made available to audit, for furnishing the requisite records and replies to audit. However,
in response, Department only provided copy of some bills of payment made to the Concessionaine
and wvery few other records. Essential records i.e. main files/policy files, tendering process for
selection of Concessionalre & Independent Consultant and approval of Council, minutes of the
meeting of monitaring and review committee, fleet details, details of MSW, material issued to
employee, log books, OSRT details etc. required to complete the audit in compliance of the
provision of the Concession Agreement, was not provided despite repeated requisitions by audit.

To pursue the matter, series of meetings were held in the Chamber of the Medical Officer
(Health)/CMO on 30° April 2019, 24" May 2019, 25° June 2019, 30" August 2019 and
27 September 2019 for production of recordsfinformation. Every time, it was assured that the
requisite records/infarmation would be pravided at the earliest. Audit had also issued D.O letter
and reminders on 21" May 2019, 3" June 2019, 18" June 2019, 8" July 2019 and 27" August 2019
requesting to provide the requisite recordsfinformation. However, no such records were  provided.
MNon production of records has substantially restricted the objective of audit.

Documents/records/replies which were not provided by Public Health Department are given in
Annexure-ll. The aforesaid documents/records are primarily related to the tender process,
implementation and monitoring of Solid Waste mechanism adopted under NODMC area for
treatment of Municipal Solid Waste by which planning, implementation and monitoring were to be
reviewed. In the absence of these basic documents/records/replies, audit could not examine those
aspects and is thus unable to derive assurance that the mechanism adopted by Health Department
in NDWC was made effectively, efficiently and transparently, in accordance with the Municipal 5olid
Waste (Management and Handling) Rules, 2000 and Solid Waste Management Rules, 2016. Non
production of records severely limits the exercise of audit mandate and results in lack of
accountability of Public Health Department’s functionaries under NDMC related to prevention of
fraud, owverpayment etc. It also restricts audit effectiveness. The issue is brought to the notice of
Council.

The Department replied (6° December, 2019) that the entire tendering process of the project was
dealt by Director {Project) and not by Public Health Department which is not in possession of
documents related to tendering process etc.
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Reply is not tenable as it was given to understand that the post of Director [Project) was
dismantled and the concerned Department was directed to take custody of all the respective
records of the projects. As the Health Department is custodian of these records it should have
produced the documents to audit.

4.4 Audit findings

For a meaningful audit, it was obligatory that basic records/information were to be furnished by the
Public Health Department so that audit could derive assurance and draw conclusion on the
mechanlsm adopted for collection and treatment of Municipal Solid Waste in NDMC Area. From the
limited records made available, Audit attempted to analyze the mechanism, of which the details are
asunder:

44.1 Awardof contract without prior approval of the Council

Article 143 (b) of NDMC Act, 1995 read with the Council Meeting Resolution No.13/2012-13 dated
28" February 2013 empowered the Chairperson, NDMC to enter into the contract upto T2 crore on
behalf of Council by following the relevant codal formalities. Further, Rule 142 of GFR provides that
every authority delegated with the financial powers of procuring goods in public interest shall have
the responsibility and accountability to bring efficiency, economy and transparency in matter
relating to the public precurement and for fair and equitable treatment.

The Concession Agreement between NDMC and M/fs Metrro Waste Handling Private Limited
(Concessionaire) was executed (12° August 2014) for collection and transportation of Municipal
Saolid Waste for a period of ten years under the jurisdiction of NDMC. As per the concession
Agreement the Performance Security for yearly value of contract was worked out considering the
estimated MSW of 300 MT per day and work was awarded at the cost of 22223/- PMT. Thus the
estimated annual value of work was approximately 724 Crore.” Considering the fact that the
contract is for a period of ten years, the value works out 1o approximately 7240 crore over the life
cycle and thus clearly the contract was beyond the financial power of the Chairman and thus
reguired Council’s approval before entering into the contract. However, scrutiny of the Council’s
resolutions for the year 2014 revealed that the Department did not lay the proposal of the project to
Council for consideration and approval before awarding the contract. Moreowver, Project
Department intimated belatedly (217 October 2014) to the Council regarding award of project to
the Concessionalre, after more than two month from the date of execution of agreement
(August-2014). Audit called for records relating to tendering process viz. Draft Project Report,
proposal, NIT, RFF, Bidding documents, Technical and Financial bid, reasonability of the cost of
the contract. However, the same were not made available. in the absence of these records audit
could not examine the predetermined criteria, eligibility of bidders, effectiveness and
transparency in award ofthe tenderforthe project.

The Department replied (6" December, 2019) that the Director Project was responsible to take
the approval of council before awarding the project and the Public Health Department had anly
the implementation role once the project was awarded. However the Public Health Department
had taken the Council approval for expenditure sanctioned of already awarded work by Director
[Project) and the copy of the same was provided to audit teamn.

The Department did not furnish any reply regarding the justification for award of contract beyond
financial power of the Chairman without prior approval of the Council.

Note 6: 300MT * 72223 * 365 days =724 crore
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4.4.2 Paymentmade without Performance Guarantee

The work of PPP Project for the collection and transportation of Municipal Solid Waste in entire
NDMC Area was awarded to M/fs Metrro Waste Handling Pvt. Ltd. on 4" August 2014. The
concessionaire was requested to submit Performance Security within 10 days from the date of issue
of the award letter and subsequently sign the Concession Agreement. But on scrutiny of the
Performance Security Register and file containing the copy of performance security it was found
that neither the Concessionaine submitted the Performance Bank Guarantee nor was it insisted by
the NDMC till 5% October 2015. Thus, the Department did nat secure its interest during the period
from 5" August 2015 to 5" October 2015.

The Department replied (6" December 2019) that the issue pertains to Director Project as he had
awarded the work and not Public Health and copy of performance bank guarantee was stated to
beenclosed,

However, further examination in audit revealed that the concessionaire had submitted Bank
Guarantee for the period from 5 August 2014 to 4™ August 2015 and thereafter, the Bank
Guarantee was renewed from 6th October 2015 instead of 5™ August 2015. Thus, it is seen that
neither the Concessionaire submitted the Bank Guarantee nor was it Insisted by NDMC for the
intervening period from 5™ August 2015 to 5™ October 2015, Reasons for the lapse were not
replied to by the Health Department.

4.4.3 Undue benefittothe Concessionaine

The Concession Agreement between NOMC and M/fs Metrro Waste Handling Private Limited
{Concessionaire) was executed (12" August 2014) for collection and transportation of Municipal
solid Waste from the area under the jurisdiction of NDMC under PPP Projoct.

As per the Schedule ‘B’ of the Concession Agreement, the Concessionaire shall place garbage
trolleys/street corner bins at its cost and expense in its area of operations as per the need and
directions of NDMC. Further, as per Article 3.1 of the Concession Agreement, NDMC shall within a
period of 10 days from the Appointed Datei.e. 127 August 2014, allow the Concessionaire necessary
access to the existing project facilities to start with the implementationfconstruction. In accordance
with the aforesaid provision, NDMC had handed over 1724 bins (Masonry bins/ Garbage trolley) to
the Concessionaire on account of existing project facilities.

Audit observed from the records that NDMC had placed 1275 number of mew garbage Iron Bin
trolleys at various places in NDMC area in December-2014. Thus, NDMC incurred expenditure on
procurement of Iron Bin trolleys for providing new project facilities to the Concessionaine after
signing of the agreement. The actual money value of new garbage Iran Bin Trolleys was not
ascertainable as the procurement detalls were not made avallable to audit.

Further, NDMC had also incurred an expenditure of ¥50.60 lakh on the procurement of tri-cycles
rickshaws [March-2015) to provide project facility to the Concessionaire. Thus, NDMC facilitated
the Concessionaire after execution of agreement, resulting in undue benefit to the Concessionaire.

The Department replied (6" December 2019) that the 1275 no. of trolleys that were already in
place in NDMC area at the time of award of work were handed over to concessionaire for
operation and maintenance as per the RFP. Tri-cycle rickshaws have not been provided to
concessionaire; it is being used by the NDMC sanitary staff.

Reply is not verifiable as the Department failed to provide any records relating to tendering
process. Moreover, the Health Department did not provide amy documentary evidence in respect
of use of Tri-cycle by NDMC sanitary staff in support of its reply. Moreover, the reply is untenable
because as per the Concesslon agreement the entire responsibllity of Munlcipal Waste Collection
and disposal rested with the Concessionaire from the date of Commercial Operation
(December-2014 onwards). Hence, the procurement of Tri-cycle worth 750.60 lakh by Public
Health Department, NDMC was not warranted and thus was an avoidable expenditure.
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4.4.4 Irregular payment tothe Concessionaire

Article 5.4 of the Concession Agreement stipulates that the Concessionaire undertakes all services
relating to design, construction and procurement listed under the scope of services under Schedule
‘8" and upon completion of the works, the Independent Consultant/NDMC shall issue Readiness
Certificate to the Concessionaire under project implementation.

The Concession Agreement also stipulates that Commercial Operation Date (COD) for collection &
transpartation facilities shall mean the commercial operation date of the Project which shall be the
date on which the Concesslonalre actually starts the lifting of MSW from the NDMC area subject to
placing of total number of Garbage Trolleys required for the project and issuance of Readiness
Certificate from the Independent Consultant/MoH for the same. Further, as per the Article 7.1 of
Concession Agreement, the payment on account of tipping fee for the first month of operation shall
relate to period commencing from the date of occurrence of COD and tillthe end of the month,

(1} Auditobserved from the records that out of 14 circles the Concessionaire took over the charge
of two circles (6 & 8) on 47 December 2014 and other two circles (1 & 11) on 30° December 2014,
The charge of remaining 10 circles was taken during January-2015 to 117 February 2015 by the
Concessionaire. Payment of ¥2.61 crore was made to Concessionaire for the period from
September-2014 to January-2015 (five months). it is apparent fram the above that NODMC had made
payment for the period of September-2014 to November-2014 (3 months) to the Concessionaire
before the commencement of Commercial Operation Date and without issuance of the readiness
certificate for any circle to the Concessionaire. Further, the payment for the month of
December-2014 was made on the provisional COD, without ascertaining the exact quantity of waste
as the charge of these four circles taken up on 4th December and 30 December 2014). The veracity
of payment for the month of January-2015 to the Concessionaire is also not ascertainable as the
remaining circles were operationalized during January-2015 to 11° February 2015.

Thus, the payment of T2.61 crore was made to the Concessionaire in violation of terms and
conditions of the agreament.

{ii} Awudit further cbserved that the Department had also made payment of T81.71 lakh to two
other contractors (M/s G.T. Roadways & M/s City Life Line Travel Pvt. Ltd.) for removal of
Horticulture waste and indiscriminate garbage from the NDMC area for the period November,
December-2014 and January-2015, even when during the period from September-December-2014
and January 2015, Department also made payment on account of tipping fee of T2.61 crare to the
Concessionaire (M/fs. Metrro Waste Handling Pvt. Ltd) for carrying out Municipal Solid Waste and
Horticulture waste in accordance with the Concession agreement.
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Incidentally, M/s City Life Line Travel Private Limited and Concessionaire (M/fs Metrro Waste
handling Private Limited) were cperating their business from the same address i.e. 8551/2
Roshanara Road Delhiand Directors of both the companies were also same. The details of payments
made to these contractors are as under:

Table Mo. 4.1: Details of payment to Contrachors

5. | Name of the Name of work Period Amount

Ho.| Contractor (T In lakh)

1. | M/s GT. Roadways | Hiring of 15 nos, of Tipper Trucks for remaoval of MNovember 15.50
Horticulture waste and indiscriminate garbage 2014

2. | M/s GT. Roadways | Hiring of 15 nos. of Tipper Trucks for remaval of December 15.64
Horticulture waste and indiscriminate garbage 2014

3. | M/fs G.T. Roadways | Hiring of 15 nos. of Tipper Trucks for removal of January 13.91
Horticulture waste and indiscriminate garbage 2015

4. | M/s City Life Line | Supplying of tipper Trucks for remaval of Horticulture| December 36.66
Travel Pwi. Lid. waste and indiscriminate garbage from NDMC area. 2014

Total 81.71

This issue needs detailed explanation by the Health Department to the Council to assure that
transparency for making payment to Concessionaire and other contactors for removal of garbage
was malntained during the perlod.

The Department replied (6" December 2019) that the Concession Agreement stated that the
cancessionaire shall be required to achieve COD within & months of signing agreement and
implementation period was to be provided to Concessionaire. NDMC had issued provisional COD
with the approval of Competent Authority for the purpose of the payment in respect of garbage
transported from NDMC area dated 9" January 2015. It indicates that the payment was made to
the M/s Metrro Waste Handling Pvt. Ltd. for September, October, November & December-2014
only after issuance of provisional COD. Letter of Independent Consultant dated December-2014
mentioned that Mfs Metrro had met with the OSM requirement.

Further, regarding the observation continuing with the hired tipper trucks it stated that a meeting
wias held in Chairman's chamber with Secretary (NDMC), MOH, Director Project, Chief Engineer
(Civil), Chief Architect, Director (Metrro Waste Handling Pvt. Ltd.) and Independent Consultantin
which it was decided that Mfs Metrro waste shall be handed over Circle no. 6 & 8 for
transportation of garbage and NDMC shall withdraw hired trucks from these two circles and
providie no wehicle and staff for the same. A total of 10 vehicles were withdrawn from these two
circles. NDMC had given circle wise implementation programme to M/s Metrro (Para 3 of MOM -
5" December 2014). In view of the decision taken in the meeting held on 5" December 2014 the
hired vehicles were to be removed in phase out manner.

The reply (6" December 2019) of the Department is nottenable as the payment to Concessionaire
forthe period from September-2014 to 3™ December 2014 was not due as the two circles no. 6 & 8
out of 14 circles were initially handed over to the Concessionaire on 4" December 2014 and other
two circles no. 1 & 11 were commenced from 30" December 2014, thus the decision for making
the payment for the previous period (September-2014 to 3" December-2014) did not arise.
Further, the provislonal CoD was lssued by the Medical Officer (Health) on 9% January 2015
without mentioning the circle-wise implementation plan and the recommendation of
Independent Consultant for Issuance of Readiness Certificate was Issued on 9° April 2015 which
was effected from 11" February 2015. Moreover, fallure of Health Department to provide the
records rendered un-ascertainable the wveracity of payment made for December-2014 and
January-2015 to Concessionaire as the remaining circles were operationalised during January-
201510 February-2015.
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The reply regarding continuing with the hired tipper truck of the Department is irrelevant and it
does not answer the objection raised in audit. This issue needs detailed explanation by the Health
Department to the Council to assure that no over payment/inadmissible payment was made to
the Concessionaire.

4.4.5 WVariation in tare welght of vehicles

Test check of about 100 weighment slips of Municipal Solid Waste [M3W) issued from Welghing
Bridge at Waste to Energy Plant, Okhla for the month of December-2014 revealed that the Tare
weight of same vehicle(s) was in variance ranging from 15 Kgs to 960 Kgs for four compactors. The
details are given in Annexure-lil. The weight of emply vehicles should have been about same after
unloading the MSW, which needed to be checked by Health Department from the welghment slips,
Instances of wide variance in tare weight of the vehicles were noticed in test-check of weighment
slip of December-2014 and thus mare such instances cannot be Ruled out. This raises a doubt onthe
correctness of the payments made to the Concessionaire on account of tipping fee,

The Department replied (6" December 2019) that the Concessionaire transport garbage in closed
body compactors, Variation In tare weight occurs due to some given factors such as the total
amount of garbage is not disposed off always as it is a closed body and garbage is stuck in the body
and the weight of the undelivered garbage was causing variation in weight and leads toloss to the
concessionaire. Fuel tanks capacity of the compactors varies from model to model used for
transportation, It1s also causes variation inwelght.

Reply of the Department is not tenable as there were huge differences in tare weight of same
vichicle raising upto 960 Kg, a figure too high to be justificd by the reason given by the
Department.

44.6 Paymentfor transporting of MW to site other than designated ones on duplicate bills

Article 7.1lb) of the Concession Agreement stipulates that the Concessionaire shall weigh the
Municipal Solid Waste [MSW) and get it duly certified by the Independent Consultant/Autharized
person of NDMC for making the payment of tipping fee. Further, as per the schedule A{C) of the
agreement the M5W was to be transported to the designated site i.e. landhll facility set up at
Ghazipur by the Municipal Corporation of DelhifEDMC, treatment facility operated by TOWMCL
WTD project at Okhla,

Test check of bill payment for the month of December 2015 revealed that the Concessionaire in
instances attached duplicate weighment slips of M/s ILE&FS Infra & Services Ltd, SOMC compost
Plant, New Delhi which was not the designated site for transportation of MSW, These slips were
verified by the Sanitary Inspector, Independent Consultant and NDMC and payment of 4,26 Lakh
was made toLoncessionaire.

The Department replied (6" December 2019) that as per MSW Rules, it was mandated to process
wet organic waste into compost and accordingly MOH of NDMC Initiated composting at SDMC
compost plant after talking with SOMC Officers. Compaost plant OKHLA [ILEFS) Is designated site
of disposal of waste to meet with the requirement of MSW Rules. Further regarding duplicate
welghtment slips it stated that that since original slips raised by ILEFS Infra Services Ltd. were
misplaced hence duplicate weightment slips were raised by the plants which was duly verified by
the NDMC Sanitary Inspector and Independent Consultant.

The reply of the Department is not tenable as the practice was in violation of the Concession
Agreement. Moreover, the reasons that welgh slips only in respect of ILEFS Infra Services Limited
were misplaced and other slips of designated points were intact, were not justified by the Health
Department. Moreover, the Department had not submitted any documentary evidence
regarding NDMC inltiating composting at SDMC Compost plant In assoclation with SDMC officers.
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4.4.7  Irregularaward of work to Independent Consultant

The Gencral Financial Rules 183,184,185,186 and 194 envisaged the conditions regarding
identification of likely sources, short listing of Consultants, preparation of terms and reference,
preparation and issue of RFP and single source of selection/Consultancy by nomination for
procurement of Consulting Services. The Central Vigilance Commission also formulated the
guidelines for floating and acceptance of tender considering wide publicity, generate enough
competition and to avoid favouritism, the award of contracts on nomination/single tender basis to
be resorted to only under exceptional circumstances and no post tender negotiations with
L1 bldder, except In certaln exceptional situations.

As per the Article 4.1(b) of Concession Agreement (127 August 2014), the Independent Consultant
shall be appointed for a period of five years. In this connection, request for propasal for selection of
Independent Consultant for the project was initiated on 117 August 2014 and enly one firm .e. ‘M/s
SEMES Consultants India Pvt. Lid' submitted its bid. The technical and financial bid was opened on
22™ August 2014 and 18" September 2014 respectively. Thereafter, the case was forwarded
(19" September 2014) to Finance Department for its approval. The Finance Department reverted
the file to the then Director [Project) for compliance of certain observations such as:

=  The Department may be advised to submit their specific proposal with their recommendation

forthe work;

+  Tender document not signed by the tenderopening Sub-Committes;
*  Caseshould be routed through the associate finance along with A& and ESS obtained from the
Competent Authority;

s  Department may ensure and certify that the rates quoted by the single bidder are reasonable
and justified and no better competition are expected if recalled’.

In response, the then Director (Project) merely submitted a statement that the rates quoted
by the M5 SEMES Consultants was justified and the same was approved by the Chairman on
7" October 2014 and work was awarded to M/s SENES Consultants India Pvt. Ltd for a period of
threeyearsw.e.f. 107 October 2014 with a monthly remuneration of 71,84, 770/-. Further, as per the
agreement, Service Tax as applicable on the above payment from time to time would be payable by
MDMC and Concessionaire. The contract expired on 9° October 2017, Thereafter, the Independent
Consultant requested (12 September 2017) NDMC for extension of contract for another period of
3 years with an increase of 7 percent over the professional fee; NDMC had given extension to the
Independent Consultant in piecemeal mannerupto August-2018.

Auditobserved that:

a}) Duringthe call of tender in 2014, NDMC did not adhere to the widest possible publicity through
well-circulated national and local newspapers for greater transparency intendering process in
accardance with the General Financial Rules and CVC guidelines. NDMC also did not give any
justification and reasonability while acceptance of single bid for the selection of the
independent Consultant.

b) Asperthe Concession Agreement, the Independent Consultant was to be appointed for a period
of five years, However, NDMC had appointed Independent Consultant for a period of three years;
reasons for the same were not ascertainable from the records made available to audit.

¢) Thecontract for Consultancy expired in October-2017 and NDMC had given extension upto 157
August 2018 Le. around 10 months, The Independent Consultant had also not submitted the
statutory tax for the period from October-2014 to May-2015.
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scruting of records made available to audit further revealed that in November-2017 NDMC imvited
tender through e-procurement for the engagement of Independent Consultant. However, only ong
bid of the cxisting Independent Consultant (ARCADIS India Private Limited previously known as
SENES Consultant) was received in December-2017. Being a case of single bid, the Sub-Committeg
cancelled the bid and decided toinvite fresh online tender for Consultancy on 237 January 2018 and
the same was approved by the then Chairman on 23 March 2018, The second call of tender for
work was re-invited on 28™ March 2018 and last date of participating in the tenderwas 9" April 2018
and only one bidder i.c. existing Independent Consultant again participated and qualificd in the
tendering process and financial bid was opened on 19" June 2018 with the approval of Competent
Authority. The Sub-Committee opined that M/s ARCADIS s working with NDMC for the |ast 10 years
and was selected through proper procedure in 2014 and that the duty of a consultant was a
specialized work and there were very few firms dealing with such type of consultancy. The Sub-
Committee also called consultant before the negotiation committee duly approved by the
Competent Authority to finalize the fees to be provided to the Consultant. Mfs ARCADIS India
Private Limited agreed to reduce the gquoted rates from 2,56,060/- to 12,.36,000/- per month
inclusive of all prices (22,00,000/- + 18 percent service charges) for the next five years. The
Competent Authority approved the selection of Independent Consultant on 14™ August 2018,

Audit observed that:

a) While floating the Reguest for Proposal during second call of tender for selection of
Independent Consultant it was mentioned in the qualification criteria parameters that Experience
as Independent Consultant for at least two projects, of 200 tonnes per day capacity of Municipal
Solid Waste were requined during the last five years and that Consortium is not allowed for this
praject. However, an experience certificate for one of the work done by SENES Consultants India
Put. Ltd. in last years was found to be issved to a consortium of Yachivo Engineering Co. Ltd., and
SEMES Consultants India Pvt. Ltd. Thus, in accordance with the qualification eriteria mentioned in
the Request for Proposal, SENES Consultants India Pvt. Ltd. was apparently not technically qualified
for bidding for the project.

b) M/s ARCADIS India Pvt. Ltd. disclosed (117 December 2017) its PAN details as AAOCAS200H in
its net worth certificate issued by the Chartered Accountant as well as its Income Tax Return.
However, in June 2016, M/s ARCADIS India Pvt. Ltd. disclosed its PAN detail as AADFDI246) in the
intimation of amalgamation submitted to NDMC. The difference between two PANS submitted by
M/s ARCADIS India Pvt. Ltd. having same registration number U74140KA2003PTCO32795 on two
occasions required clarification.

The Department replied (6* December 2019) that this does not pertain to Public Health
Department as Director Project had done the entire tendering process and selection of
Independent Consultant. This requires detailed explanation by the Department to the Council to
assure that the tendering process was as per the extant Rules.

As per Para 1.1 of introduction of the Monthly Inspection Report of September-2018, NOMC
selected an Independent Consultant (IC) for monitaring of the project during concession period.
However, the monthly report for the same month was submitted by the M/s ARCADIS India Pvt. Ltd,
instead of SENES. The circumstances under which M5 ARCADIS India Pwt. Ltd, submitted the
manthly report was not ascertainable in audit in absence of related documents.
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The Department replied (6™ December 2019) that the relevant documents of amalgamation of
SEMES were attached for reference and that post merger the company name has been changed to
ARCADIS India Pvt. Ltd,

However, the approval of the Competent Authority of NDMC to re-validate the contract after the
change of name was not furnished by the Health Department.

4.4.8 MSWtransported In Open Dumperto designated site In violation of MSW Rules

schedule B (B) (3) of the Concession Agreement stipulates that the Concessionaire shall collect
MEW from Street Corner Bins and Garbage Stations every day and transportation of the collected
waste In segregated form in closed vehicle to the NDMC designated sites,

Test-check of bill for the month of December-2015 revealed that the Concessionaire transported
the Municipal Solid Waste to the designated disposal site through using open dumper which
emanate foul smell and cause nuisance to people. Audit observed from 1526 weighment slips for
the manth of December-2015, the Concessionaire transported MSW 391 times through open
dumper in December-2015. It was noticed that in the Concession Agreement, there was no penalty
clause in case of M3W transported through open dumper to enforce the compliance of Municipal
Solid Waste transportation in the closed vehicle.

The Department replied (6" December 2019) that NDMC is 49 percent green area and has large
number of big trees in area generating huge amount of horticulture waste. Regular pruning is
required which results in generation of horticulture waste comprising of thick log of trees and
branches which cannot be transported in closed body compactors as it would resultin breaking of
plates/Hydraulic pipes ete. This horticulture waste which was transported in open dumper is
belng judiciously covered with tripal at the time of transfer.

Reply of the Department is not tenable asitis a clearviolation of Concession Agreement as well as
M5W Rules which prohibits the transportation of MSW in open dumper and reply appears to be
an afterthought after the objection was raised by audit.

4.4.9 Commitments regarding Zero Waste Colonics

spot verification of the Compost Plant, Chanakya Pur and Bio-Methanization Plant at Laxmi Bai
Magar to carry out the waste of five colonies’ which were declared as "Zero Waste” colonies was
conducted on 177 October 2018. The detallsare as under:

(I} Garbage Treatment Plant, Dkhla receiving non segregated waste

It was observed that the garbage being delivered to the Okhla Treatment Plant is in a mixed form
and not segregated Into dry and wet, This was due to the fact that the segregated waste (dry and
wet) collected in the NDMC area was being again mixed at the stage of transferring from the Auto
Tippers to the Compactors. This defeats the very purpose of the efforts made towards awareness
and activities for garbage segregation.

ii) CompostPlantatChanakyaPuri:

It was observed that the wet waste of three circles 6, 8 B 10 out of 5 circles was being received at
Compost Plant for treatment, However, at the Compost Plant, only the compostable waste such as
fruits/vegetable peels ete. was manually segregated and put in the machine to generate compost;
rest of the compostable wet waste was being sent totreatment plant at Okhla.

Mote 7: Rabindra Magar (Circle-6), Kaka Magar (Circle-8), Jor Bagh (Circle-9), Chanakya Puri D-1 and O-11
(Cirele-10) and Raflway Colary, Chanakys Puri [Circle<10)

i
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It was also noticed that the capacity of the Compost Plant was approximate 500 kg. per day while
the wet waste from the four colonies i.e. Rabindra Magar, Kaka Nagar, D-1/D-Il Chankya Puri &
Railway Colony-Chanakya Puri was 850 kgs. (approx.), which were beyond the capacity of the
Compost Plant, Records showed that the composting plant was also receiving wet waste fram
Circle-3 B 11. twas further learned that out of the five colonies declared as “Zero Waste” the entire
wet waste of Jor Bagh (Circle-9) was still being sent to Okhla Treatment Plant. Moregver, in the D-1 &
D-Il Colony and Railway Colony, Chanakyapuri (Circle-10) there were 152 flats which were not
segregating the garbage and were dumping it in the trolley (1100 kg.} keptin the colony. Thus, from
the above information, it appears that the other four colonies, also, namely Rabindra Nagar, Kaka
Magar, D-I/D-1l Chankya Puri & Railway Colony-Chanakya Puri cannot be called as fully "Zero Waste"
compliant, as part of their wet waste was still being sent to the Okhla Treatment Plant.

The capacity of the Bio-Methanization Plant was 500 kgs. per day; also there was a plasma based
treatrment plant at the site whose capacity was 200 kgs. The Bio-Methanization Plant and the
Plasma Treatment Plant were primarily recelving wet waste from restaurants/hotels etc, of two
circles Le, & and 10 along with other three circles Le, 1, 5 & 13, However, itwas seen that at the Big-
Methanization Plant wet waste components such as bones, solid vegetables ete. were being sent to
Okhla Treatment Plant.

The Department replied (6™ December 2019) that the NDMC is generating Wet/organic waste to
the tune of 1L0MPD approx excluding bulk waste generators. The wet waste processing capacity of
NDMC s only 1.5 MT which cannot deal with 100 MT organic waste generated every day. NDMC
wias not left to any option but to sent his waste to only processing plant available processing plant
which s waste to energy plant.

As per the reply of the Department, the very purpose of the designating “Zero Waste Colonies”
was inaccurate as NDMC has not yot formulated a strategy to deal with 100 MT organic waste
generated everyday insustainable optimum manner.

4.4.10 Shortcomingsinthe Monthly inspection Report 2018

The concessionaire shall operate and maintain the Street Corner Bins to meet the Q&M
Requirements under the provision of sub-point (2) to () of point 2.1.1 of schedule D of concession
agreement. The compliance with O & M Requirements laid down for deficiencies of different
Assets/Project deliverables/service standard were to be evaluated on percentage basis to decide
and impose the penalty mentioned in the schedule, The tolerance criteria in respect of
Assets/Project Deliverables/Service Standard as mentioned in Schedule D of the Concession report
for deciding the quantum of the penalty 25 shown intable :-

Table Mo, 4.2: Tolerance Criteria for Assets/Project Deliverables fService Standard

5 | AssetsfProject Deliverables/ Performance | Statussubmitbed by IC Menthly

He.| Sorvice Standard Torgot Ingpection Ropart

1 | Clearing of MSW- Daily 10dpercent | Information not furnished inthe report.
Weeldy cieaning and disinfection of the 100 pereend N information about disinfection
strinet cornr bing/ community mobile bing. furnished inthe repoct

3 | Dailycleaningof Garbage Hation 100 percent Mo nfarmathon inthe report

4 | Cleaning of surrounding srea 100 pereent Information pot furniched inthe nepot.

5 | Protective dothing for workers 100 percent In¢amplete information provided

6 | Daily cleaning & disinfection of wehicke 100 percen Ingomplete Information provided

T | Hobreakdownof wehicles 100 percent Information not furnished inthe report.

8 | Nospdlage/lealkage while transportation 100 percent Infermation not furnizhed inthe repor.

9 | Timing=0peration from 7.00 AM1 100 pereent Information rot furmbdhed [nthe mepor.
6.00 P8 on all seven days through the
year for CC-Response Mechanism

10 | Transfer station o be completed in one year 100 percent information ot furnished inthe neport.
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Following other shortcomings were noticedin the test checked report of September-2018.
=  Report regarding 100 percent clearing of binsof MSW-Daily™ is notfound inthe repart.
«  Owverall percentage of overflowing of waste binin 10 circlesis not showninthe required report.

= Waste was spread around bins in 10 circles, but there is no mention of overall percentage of
spreading of waste in the report,

*  Asperthe agreement 100 percent bins were (o be washed and disinfected once in a week, but
test check of report for the month of September-2018 disclosed that these were not being
cleaned regularly, Action taken against the concessionaire was not ascertainable from the
records.

= 22 binsin 7 circles have been reported to be received in August-2018 for repair and the same
were placed in next month i.e. September-2018 after getting repaired. Itis not ascertainable as
towhether or not damaged ones were replaced with new ones during the period of repair,

* In respect of the criteria fixed at 51 no.5 & & clearing of surrounding area and protective
clothing for workers were not upto the mark of performance target of 100 percent, which
attracts penalty and was to be recovered from Concessionaire by NDMC on the
recommendation of Independent Consultant, However, the recommendation of Independent
Consultant to impose the penalty for violation of terms of agreement was not available in the
Monthly Inspection Report.

Thus, the Independent Consultant did not act fully in accordance with the provision of the
Concession agreement under the overall objective of the MSW Management Rules in NDMC, but
still full payment was being made toit by NDMC.

The Department replied (6° December 2019) that the corrective action has been taken by
Independent Consultant.

However, the supporting documents for action taken against the Concessionaire as pointed outin
the monthly inspection report of September-2018 were not furnished. Moreover, NDMC had not
imposed any penalty against the Concessionaire as reported by the Independent Consultant.

CONCLUSION :

The Public Health Department did not produce the documents relating tendering process. Thus, it
is not verifiable whether the tender was awarded in fair and transparent manner in accordance
with the extant Rules, Regulations and Guidelines. Moreover, no pre approval of the Council was
taken for floating the tender and award of project. Various discrepancies were noticed in the
implementation of contract such as benefit/irregular payment to the Concessionaire coupled
with the irregular award of waork to the Independent Consultant. Instances of Municipal Waste
being disposed in violation of M5SW Rules were also noticed especially with regard to
transportation in open dumper and in effective segregation of wet/dry waste. The monitoring
mechanism of effective implementation of praject deliverablefservice tendered for the project
also had multiple shortcomings which needed urgent correction.

T4
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CHAPTER-5

CIVIL ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

Audit of Construction and Demolition Waste Management

5. Intreduction

NDMC is responsible for collection of C&D Waste dumped at various locations i.e. road sides, waste
storage depots, in-house civil works, maintenance works etc, and transporting the same to Gazipur
Landfill for disposal. The Ministry of Environment, Forests and Climate Change (MoEFCC) notified
(September-2000) the Municipal Solid Waste {Management and Handling) Rules, 2000 (MSW
Rules, 2000). Subsequently, MoEFCC amended the MSW Rules, 2000 and introduced Rules for
management of biomedical, plastic, hazardous, CE&D and e-waste. The Solid Waste Management
Rules, 2016 superseded (April 2016) MSW Rules, 2000,

MNew Delhi Municipal Council handled upto December-2016 collection and disposal of Construction
& Demolition [CED) wastef/{malba) comprising of building materials, debris and rubble resulting
from construction re-modeling, repair and demolition and any civil structure from its area through
in-house staff and vehicles, Thereafter, the work was outsourced to M/s Metrro Waste Handling
Private Limited from January-2017 onwards.

5.1 5cope of Audit, its objective and methodology

The audit for collection of Construction and Demolition Waste under NDMC area covering the
period January-2017 to March-2019 has been attempted to assess whether management of
Construction and Demolition Waste was effective, efficient and carried out economically and
scientifically as the extant Rules. The audit methodology involved document analysis and responses
to audit queries while framing the conclusions and recommendations,

5.2 Auditfindings

Far a meaningful audit, it is obligatory that basic records/information were to be furnished by the
Civil Department 50 that audit could derive assurance and draw conclusion on the mechanism
adopted for collection and treatment of CAD Waste in NDMC Area. From the records made
available, Audit analysed the mechanism through test check basis; the findings thereof are as
under:

5.2.1 Deficiency regarding the Integrity pact and non compliance of CVC guidelines

Integrity Pact is essentially an agreement between the prospective vendors/bidder and the buyers,
committing the personsfofficials of both sides, not to resort to any corrupt practice in any
aspectfstage of the contract. In order to ensure transparency, equity and competitivenass in Public
Procurement, the OVC [Chief Vigilance Commission) recommended (December-2007) for adoption
of concept of Integrity pact. Further Department of Expenditure (Juby-2011) extend the applicability
of Integrity Pact to all subordinate offices, autonomous bodies ete.

Accordingly, NDMC was also required to comply with the provisions related to Integrity Pact
circulated by CVC from time to time. As per OM of Department of Expenditure (197 July 2011) in
relation with Integrity Pact, an Independent External Monitor (IEM) was also required to be
appointed for the work exceeding the threshold amount. Accordingly in all the RFPftenders the
details of IEM need to be mentioned. However, it was observed that in relation with the work
relating to "Collection, Transportation and Dumping of Construction and Demolition waste from
NDMC area on PPP Model™ awarded (September-2016) to M/s Metrro Waste Handling Private
Limited, no cdause regarding IEM was included In the RFP Issued [January-2016) by the NDMC, This
was against the stipulation of S0P circulated by the CVC.
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Audit also found that the Integrity Pact in relation with the contract was entered belatedly into with
the concessionaire on 18th January 2017 [the same day of entering into the concession agreement
with the concessionaire) even though it was required to be entered in advance with the prospective
bidders. Further, though Integrity Pact was signed by both the parties wherein it was mentioned
that “PrincipalfOwner had appointed Independent External Monitors for this pact in consultation
with the Central Vigilance Commission whose names and email Ids were given in the NIT®, howewver,
noname of any |EM was found either inthe RFP or the concession agreement. These practices were
inviolation of the directives of the Central Vigilance Commission of India.

Department replied (26" December 2019) that the RFP for the project was approved by the
Competent Authority. However, Department expressed difficulty to bring out the fact for non
inclusion of Integrity Pactinthe RFP,

In light of the inadequate reply of the Department this issue needs detalled explanation by the Chl
Department ko the Council.

5.2.2 Lessdetermination of Performance Security from the Concessionaire

Rule 171 of GFR 2017 stipulates that to ensure due performance of the contract, performance
security is to be obtained from the successful bidder. Performance Security (PS) shall be for an
amount of 5 to 10 percent of the value of the contract as specified in the bid decuments and it shall
remain valid for a minimum period of sixty days beyond the date of completion of all contractual
obligations. However, it was observed that Instead of determining the value of Performance
security after finalization of the tendering process on the basis of the awarded value, the amount of
Performance Security was fixed at T18.00 lakh. In this regard it was pertinent to mention here that
the total value of contract was T30.85 crore” for a period of seven years on the basis of estimated
guantity of 70 MT per day and this Performance Security should be ¥1.54 crore, Thus the
Department fixed the Performance Security less by T1.36 crore.

it was further observed that the Bank Guarantee amounting to €18.00 lakhs was deposited (8th
September 2016) by the concessionaire with a validity up to September-2018, Thereafter, as per the
stipulations of the concession agreement it was required to obtain Bank Guarantee afresh before
expiry of the original Bank Guarantee, However, it was observed that the existing BG expired in
September-2018 but it was obtained on 11° February 2019, after 2 gap of mare than 4 months. This
was not only against the stipulation of concession agreement but also during the intervening pericd
the interests of the Council were not protected.

5.2.3 Delayindeduction of labourcessforthe Concessionaire

Section 3 of “The building and other construction workers (Regulation of Employment and
Conditions of Service) WELFARE CESS ACT, 1996” stipulates that there shall be levied and collected a
cess at such rate not exceeding two percent but not less than one percent of the cost of canstruction
incurred by an emplover, as the Central Government may, by notification in the Official Garette,
from time to time specify. Moreover, Section 8 & 9 of the Act stipulates interest & penalty for non
compliance. As per clause 6.2 of the concession agreement, the concessionaire was required to pay
all taxes, duties and outgoings relating to the project. In line with the above clause of the concession
agreement it was required by the concessionaire to comply with all the applicable Rules and
regulation relating to the project and NDMC to deduct the applicable taxes. However, it was
observed that the labour cess was not deducted immediately after the beginning of the project and
it was belatedly deducted from the 4th running bill (June-2017) onwards instead of the 15t running
bill {(March-2017], This delay in deduction of labour welfare cess on the part of Department, was in
deviation from the Section 3, 8 & S of subject Act,

Mote B: (1395*T0%365)+ (1492.07 *T0*365)+[1597.10* 70*365)+{ 1 708.09* T0* 365+ [ 1828.07* 70" 365)+
(1956.60* 70*365) + (2093.50*70*365) = T 30,85 erore
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5.2.4 Finalisation of tender without conducting comprehensive cost benefits analysis

The New Delhi Municipal Council was handling collection and disposal of Construction &
Demaolition waste from its area through Departmental staff and vehicles prior to Januany-2017. As
per the stated experience of the related Department the estimated generations of CED waste was
approximately B96 metric tonne per month. A proposal was initiated (Novemnber-2015) by the
Executive Engineer (CP) to get this work done through an outside agency stating that there was no
counter-check whether the C&D waste was being dumped with proper accountability and there
were repeated incidents of unauthorized dumping of malba by CPWD contractors and residents of
NDMCE. This malba were alsoremoved by the NDMC through own arrangement.

On 26™ November 2015, the CE [Civil-l) proposed three options for consideration and approval for
the Competent Authority. After considering the proposal, the then Chairperson of NDMC directed
(27" November 2015) Civil Department to submit the specific views on each option with the pros
and cons of the project. The Superintending Engineer [R-11) submitted (21" December 2015) the
analysis/views in reference to the above stated options to the Chief Engineer (Civil-1). The Proposal
by CE{C-1) & views by SE-Il are given below. The details ane as under:

OPTION NO. |

Proposal by CE{C-I)

Views by SE (R-l)

The contractorsfagency of NDMC would be
directed to collect, lift and dump the C&D
waste [malba) from the NDMC area and from
the designated bin or exclusive bin provided at
nearty construction site, complete operation
out sourced. C & D waste bin and hook loader
would be provided by the agency and the
dumping of C&D Waste at the designated sites
on per metric tonne C&D waste for estimated
90 MT C & Dwaste perday for the period of
Syears,

The financial cost T1506/- 10 T1936/- per MT.

“It has been observed that 90 metric tonne
C&D waste/malba per day is required for
regular O&M tender for the period of five years
which Is not possible because about 40 percent
C&D waste/malba is part of total dumping of
C&D waste/malba being dumped at Gazipur
site everyday/month and remaining mixed
malba goes to Gazipur. 50, as mentioned
requirement of 90 metric tonne is not possible
to provide to agencies which will be better
during preparation of terms and conditions
which ever quantity will be collected of CED
waste/malba from various bins, that should be
paid to the agencies instead of lumpsum
quantity of 90 metric tonne per day™
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OPTION NO. Il

Proposal by CE{C-I)

wiews by SE-1l

C & D wastefmalba would be collected by the
Departmental staff and wehicles (small tipper) and
dumped/stored in the C& D waste bin provided at the
designated locations sub division wise estimated CED
Waste about 90 MT per day.

(i} The disposal of C&D waste/malba, bin to dumping
site by agency with the following methodology:-

(a) The C&D Waste bins and Hook Loader would be
purchased by NDMC and O&M of Hook Loader by the
agency for five years contract. The financial cost 7310/~
to T398/- per metric tonne and the cost of procurement
of CRDWaste bin and Hook Loader T351/- 1acs.

(b) CBD Waste bins and Hook Loader would also be
provided by agency for five years contract basis.

The financial cost will be about T763/- to T981/- per
metric tanne.

“It is not possible to collect C&D waste/
malba from various bins/locations and
collect at one location by Departmental
trucks and then contractor/agency will
lift the malba on his contract rate. It is
not possible because Departmental
trucks will not fulfil the lifting
requirement of everyday keeping in
view the number of other works are also
compulsory at each service centre
instead of removal/flifting of C&D
waste/malba generated by CPWD. Here,
it will be better that contractor himself
collects the generated malba at various
locations and dump at EDMC C&D waste
plantwith complate TEP”.

OPTION NO.II (PILOT

PROJECT)

Proposal by CE(C-1)

views by SE-Il

8 No. bins of 5 m3 and 4 No. of bins 10 m3 capacity
would be provided by the NDMC in the area along
with the three Hook Loader and lifting, transporting
and dumping of the C&D Waste/ Malba at MCD site
would be outsourced through OBEM contract for a
period of five years as a pilot project.

The financial cost for 60 metric tonne CRD
Waste/Malba would be about T399/)- to 7599/ per
metric tonne and the cost of procurement of C&D
Waste bin and Hook Loader will be about T160/- lacs.

“There should be 8 nos. bins of 5m3 and
4 nos. of bins of 10m3 capacity provided
by the agency themselves is that are
after location fixed by NDMC,
Thereafter, agency will lift their bins
through hook system by transporting
and dumping of C&D waste/malba from
NDMC site through outsource for a
period of one year on trial basis of actual
malba is lifted from the site and dumped
at EDMC site instead of consider the 90
metric tonne per day CED waste/malba
in interest of Department. After
completion of one year, whatever
deficiency/ cutcome is observed, then
O&M contract should be increased with
the amendments as required for smooth
function of O&M contractor for next two

YEars or more years'.

Thercafter, on 23° December 2015, the Chicf Engineer
through complete outsourcing) is most appropriate

[Civil-l) proposed that option | (work done
keeping the work difficulties as mixed

arrangement would be difficult to implement and the RFF was approved by the Competent

Authority on'9™ February 2016,
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AuditObservations are asunder:

The Department preferred the outsourcing route without fully considering the comparative cost
benefit analysis of all the these options after proper justification taking into 2ccount of manpower,
other resources available with the NDMC as explained below:

;I_ul._mure'u'mr thE hasls of the flnanclal cost uf HSUE;’ to ?1935.1’ per metric tonne and
estimated quantity of 20 metric tonne per day was not available on record, specially giventhe fact
that costing of the C&D disposal by MNDMC an its own was not available for comparison.

mmen the SE{R—II}suhn'utted sp-ecuf‘: pros cons [21° Eluzn:ember Iﬂlﬁl for np't:-nn 1 it
was mentioned that *“ft was not possible to collect C&D waste/malba from various
bins/locations and collect at one location by Departmental trucks and then contractor/agency
will lift the malba on this contract rate”. However, this reasoning given for not considering
option-2 was irrelevant as it deviated from the original condition for CRD waste collection for
option-2 which stated that CED waste malba is to be collected from bins provided at the
designated location/sub division wise. Moreover, the original proposal stated about lifting by
Department small tipper while the view by 5E stated took into account unavailability of
Departments trucks - again an invalid comparison. Thus, the reasons for non consideration of
option-2 were not justified.

;lﬂLAs p-er the nnre I:r.rlhe ﬂﬂuefEngmeer nnhe [13 De:emher 2015] rid FEASONS Were pmwded
for not considering the option-3 which proposed for giving the contract initially for one year on
trial basis for actual malba lifted from the site.

Itis evident from the above that options-11 & Il as stated above were financially cheaper® for NDMC
to lift the CED waste as compared to Option - |, based on which contract was awarded. Moreover,
one of the main reasons for resorting to the outsourcing route was reported that there was no
counter-check whether the C&D waste was being dumped with proper accountability and there
were repeated incidents of unauthorized dumping of malba by CPWD contractors and residents of
NDMC. However, since CHD Waste Management Rules, 2016 clearly empowered the local authority
{such as NDMC) to claim charges from waste generators if they do not fulfill the responsibility for
collection and disposal of CED waste, this justification was ab-initio invalid and indicates lack of
proper enforcement of C&D Rules by NDMC, which it tried to compensate by resorting to
outsourcing, even when it was always going to be financially costlier to do so considering the option
resorted to.

*As detailed in the Annexure-1V
5.2.5 Missing GPSDetails of vehicles used for transportation of CED waste

Clause 8 [¢) of Concession Agreement ervisaged that the Concessionaire has to submit daily
collection, transpartation and dumping/details of C&D waste online (Real time) along with the GPS
details for transportation of CRD waste and NDMC will pay directly the processing fees for CRD
waste to EDMC as per the CED waste dumped by the Concessionaire against the receipt/gate pass
isswed of EDMC ete.
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Test check of log generated by the GPS equipped vehicles along with the weighment slip for the
vichicle no. 7023 issued by EDMC for the month of January-2017 revealed that payment to
Concessionaire was made for the period from 18" January 2017 to 20" January 2017 without
verification of log details of vehicle as there were not found on records. Similarly, the payment was
made on the basis of log details of the vehicle to Concessionaire for the period from 5% July 2017 to
6" July 2017 which depicted as ‘NA’ instead of the exact location of vehicle.

5.2.6 Variation Inthe weight of emptyvehicles

Scruting of running account bills revealed that there was a substantial variance in the weight of
wehicle before loading the C&D waste and vehicle after disposing the CED weight as indicated in the
weighment slips issued by the EDMC for the year 2017-18. The variance ranged from 710 kg to
6170 kg. Such wide variation not only indicate lack of proper scrutiny of involces raised by the
concessionaire before payment but also there was no analysis at the Departmental level to exclude
any overpayments being made to the concessionaire [Annexure-V). Thus, the possibility of
averpayment to Concessionaire cannot be Ruled out.

5.2.7 Avolidable average expenditure 76,02 crore due to delay in the decision making

Rule 4{1) of C&D Waste Management Rules, 2016 of Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate
Change stipulates that "Every waste generator shall prima-facie be responsible for collection,
segregation of concrete, soil and others and storage of construction and demaolition waste generated,
as directed or notified by the concerned local authority in consonance with these Rules”. Further,
Rule 4(5) empowered the local authorities (Municipal Corporations) to claim charges from the
waste generators a5 claimed by the local authority or any other authority designated by the State.
Accordingly, NOMC, being the local authority was required to direct the waste generators under its
contral regarding modalities to be followed in relation with the disposal of C&D waste. Rates were
also required to be notified for the processing and disposal of C&D waste generated by them apart
from the payment for storage, collection and transportation. Before 2017 the work was being
carried out by the NDMC Departmentally and from January-2017 onwards the work was being
carried out by hiring the services of outside agency. Itwas only in September-2018 was it directed
by the Competent Authority [NDMC) that the waste generated during renovation/recanstruction
and construction of buildings and road development works etc. shall be removed by the executing
agency itself at its own cost and required to be dumped necessarily at approved recycling plants in
Delhi. Only the CED waste generated by other than contract works shall be removed by the
outsourced agency.

Audit analysis revealed that during the period February-2017 to September-2018 the total C&RD
waste uplifted was 78356 metric tonne at an average of 3917 metric tonne per month. However,
immediately after the belated notification in September 2018 regarding waste generators
responsibility as under CED Rules the upliftment came down sharply alongwith the decrease in the
paymenttothe Concessionaire, The decrease is depicted belowinthe Graph

e § Tl e bt Qrsowry ol Ly ' ol o Ll s
e LR e S

e

ALt B L

S - S
CREE R RN R N R RN R TR R B R R

- il L il Tl TH

Mote 9: Total excess quantity 41900 metric tonne (2095 metric tonne average quantity x 20 months)
2095* 11771395+ 20957 9% T1492.65 [Tipping fee of rate of T1395 for the year 2017 and T1492.65 for the
year 2018) =7 6.02 crore.
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The average monthly upliftment for CED waste after the date of notification (September-2018) till
December-2019 was only 1822 metric tonne. However, in the 20 months (pre-notifications i.e.
February-2017 to September-2018) the upliftment ranged from 1874.38 tonne to 5990.85 tonne
with the average being 3917 tenne, This data shows that the average monthly upliftment after the
delayed notification was lass than half of what was been lifted before notification; an average of the
excess monthly upliftment was 2095 metric tonne C&D waste by the Concessionaire due to delayed
notification of the subject which works out to an avoidable average expenditure of 6.02 crore.

5.2.8 Deviation from the provision of the Concession Agreement lead inter-alia to undue
advantage tothe concessionaire.

As per Clause 4.1(f) of the Concession Agreement, the concessionaire was required to set-up a
mechanized workshop facility at the nearby NDMC area for parking, repairand maintenance of C&D
waste bins, vehicles and equipments. NDMC would not provide the land/space for this purpose &
the concessionaire had to arrange the same at his own cost and arrangement. However, it was
observed that the concessionaire had set-up a mechanized workshop at Laxmi Bai Nagar, New
Delhi, located in the NDMC area and the spacefland wherein the workshop set-up also pertained to
the NDMC which neither levied any charges nor recovered any amount towards the land and other
facilities being utilised by the concessionaire in relation with the workshop set-up. This led to undue
financial advantage to the concessionaire.

CONCLUSION ;

NDMC did not conduct a proper cost benefit analysis before outsourcing the CED waste
management to the Concessionaire. Moreover, deviation from the CVC guidelines was noticed in
the process. Various deficiencies such as fixation of less performance security, delay in deduction
of labour cess, variation in the weight of empty vehicle, deviations from the provisions of
Concesslon Agreement, avoldable payment and undue benefit to the concessionalre were also
noticed in Audit.
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CHAPTER-6

ARCHITECT DEPARTMENT
Thematic audit of Internal Control in the Architect Department

6. Introduction

The Department of Architecture & Environs in NDMC is responsible for the control and monitoring
of the construction activitics in the NDMC arca. The role of the Department i important as the
unigue character of this prime area of Delhiis to be preserved while policies for development have
to be implemented.

The Department has four distinct roles and responsibilities: Design and supervision of NDMC
Buildings; Approval of Building Plans/ssuance of completion certificate to buildings in NDMC area;
Maonitoring the on-going construction for deviations through Spacial Technical Cell; Detection of
misuse in building through Misuse Cell.

To implement the roles and responsibilities, the Architect Department had further allocated the

work to the four sections:

* Design Section formulates Architectural schemes of NDMC buildings for various categories such
as5chool, Hospital and Dispensarics cte,

+ Building Plan Section deals insanctioning of all types of bulding plans in NDMC area.

= Special Technical Cell keeps watch on the ongoing  construction after the sanction of the
building plans

* Misuse Cellinspectsthe complaints and takes action there against
6.1 Scopeof Audit, Methodology, Objective & Constraints

Thematic audit on the functioning of the internal control in the Architect Department covering the
period 2012-13 to 2017-18 has been attempted to assess whether the Architect Department
effectively monitored and implemented its functioning in accordance with NDMC Act, existing
guidelines and other Actsfinstructions. Records such as inspections, surveys, complaints, building
plan approval and its implementation, progress of construction work, mixed use policy, misuse and
settlement of complaints were required for examination.

Documents/records/replies which were not provided by Architect Department are given In
Annexure-Vl, The aforesaid documents/records are primarily related to duties allocated under
MPD 2021, building bye laws and NDMC Act 1994 by which planning, implementation, receipt of
revenue and monitoring were to be reviewed. In the absence of these basic documents/records/
replies, audit could not examine those aspects and wasunable to derive assurance that the functioning
of the Architect Department was conducted effectively, efficiently and transparently, in accordance with
the provision envisaged in the MPD-2021, Building Bye laws, NDMC Act and atizen charter of NDMC. The
issue of production of records were taken up repeatedly with the Nodal Officer and Chicf Architect.
Howewer, peither any communication was recehned nor requisite records were made available,
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6.2 Auditfindings

For 2 meaningful audit on the functioning of Architect Department, it was obligatory that basic
recordsfinformation were to be furnished by the Sections (Building Plan, Design, 5TC and Misuse) of
the Department 50 that audit could derive assurance and draw conclusion on the functioning of the
Architect Department. During the Audit of Architect Department, records/files/replies in respect of
critical areas primarily related to functioning were not furnished, From the limited records made
available, Audit attempted to analyze the functioning of Architect Department on case to case basis,
of which the details are asunder:

6.2.1 Deficlencies ininternal control mechanism under Architect Department

The major duties and responsibilities associated with various levels of hierarchy of Architect
Department were asunder:

* Tocarry out the inspection of complicated casesin respect of building plan (by the STC Section).

* Toensure the timely and diligent disposal of all the cases/fissues at all level including matters
related to court cases,

* To inspect the buildings with reference to the sanctioned plan in reference to MPD-2021 and
Building Bye-laws for the purposes of Completion Certificate and Completion Plan.

+ Toprepare timely replies to all the PUCs including parliament/assembly questions with respect
to bullding plan/STC and allied matter.

+ Testcheck/inspection of praperties.

It is also important to mention here that an e-office s also statedly cperational sinee 2017 in the

NDMC to monitor the internal control mechanism for speedy disposal of issues received in the
Departrment and to make system more transparent and effective.

Various PUCs were being received in the general diary of various section of Architect Department
from 2015-16 to 2017-18 for various issues pertaining to sections under Architect Department, the
details are as under:

Table mo. 6.1 : Casesflssues received In various section of Architect Department

Year Special Technical Cell Design | Building Plan Misuse
(Morthand South zene)

201516 193 S0k 137 197

2016-17 358 956 107 905

2017-18 191 766 112 942

Total T4 2318 356 2044

Auditobserved the followings:

a} Thereisnomechanism inthe Architect Department to timely and diligently monitor the disposal
of cases/fissues as the Department is not preparing any monthly, quarterly and annual disposal
report of the PUCs received under the Department. The Department is not having any
details/listfregisters of inspection & survey conducted and complaints received, settled and
under consideration,

b) The Special Technical Cell received total no. of 742 PUCs during the audit period. In the absence
of records, audit could not ascertain the effectiveness and transparency in monitoring the
ongoing construction.

¢) The Building Plan Section maintains register for applications received for sanctioning of building
plan and an online module is also operational for submission of Building Flan. Audit called for the
reports generated through the system to examine the cases received, settled and in process. The

Department neither provided any report generated through system nor any requisitioned file of
building plan for detailed serutiny to audit.
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d) A total number of 2044 PUCs were received under misuse section from 2015-16 to 2017-18,
However, the Department has not evalved any mechanism to monitor these cases.

e} Theimplementation of e-office under Architect Department was not functioning properly as the
PUCs received inArchitect Department are not disposed off through e-office.

In response to the various audit requisition, Department stated that no register/records/data were
maintained in the Department and they dealt with the issue on case to case basis. Thus there exists
a very opague system without proper awdit trails which indicates a very poor accountability
mechanism in the Chief Architect Department.

Itis evident from the above that in the absence of requisite records, there is no assurance that the
work under Architect Department is being carried out effectively, efficiently & in a transparent
manner in accordance within the extant Rules and timelines as envisaged in the citizen charter of
NDMC.

6.2.2 Disposal & pendency of cases in respect of Building Plan & Completion Plan

(i} Bullding Plan application : Building Plam Section received 772 applications and 5699 applications
wore disposed off either by way of sanction or rejection and 73 applications reamained pending
during the calendar year 2012 to upto May-2017, as for June-2017 to March-2018 no information
was provided by the Architect Department. Details are given below:

Table no. 6.2 : List of the application received during calendar year 2012 to 2018

Year Mo, of applications No.of applications disposed No. of applications
[schemes) recelved | off either by sanction orrejection pending
2012 163 160 0z
2013 174 143 26
2014 149 162 (-§13
| 2015 126 105 21
2016 128 86 iz
Upto May-2017 32 28 o4
2018 Not provided Not provided Mot provided

Analysis of the information regarding list of no. of schemes/applications received, disposed off and
rejected provided to audit revealed that scheme number, date of receipts, Building Pian released
and date of rejection were not indicated in the list of cases of Building Plan (BF), Completion
Certificate (CC) & Completion Plan [CP). Further, audit observed that 160 cases out of 163
applications received afresh in the year 2012 were dispased off either by sanctioning or rejecting,
leaving 3 applications of the year pending, but the cases which were pending prior to 2012 have not
been provided. Year-wise break-up of pendency of applications of previous years, application
received and settled during the calendar year indicating the opening and closing balance of the
application was also not made available to audit. Thus, it cannot be concluded from the above
information as to whether total 73 applications shown pending for the period from 2012 to
May-2017 are correct without taking into consideration the opening and closing balances of
pendency. Moreover, the information for the years from June-2017 & March-2018 were not
pravided, o the actual position of pending cases at the end of audit period could not be arrived. In
such a scenario, there remains a guestion mark on the quality of civic services to the citizens, Thus,
timely rendering of services as per Citizen Charter remained unverifiable in audit.
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(ii)Building Plan sanctioned : As envisaged under Section 246 (period for completion of building or
work) of the New Delhi Municipal Council Act, 1994 "the Chairperson, when sanctioning the
erection of a building or execution of work, shall specify a reasonable period after the
commencement of the building or work within which the building or work is to be completed and if
the building or work is not completed within the period 3o specified, it shall not be continued
thereafter without fresh sanction obtained in the manner hereinbefore provided, unless the
Chairperson on application made therefore has allowed an extension of that period.”

NDMCE furnished the list of building plan sanctioned during the calendaryear 2012 to May-2017 and
Department did not provide the information for the period from June-2017 to March-2018. The
details are asunder:

Table no. 6.3: List of the Bullding Plan sanctioned during calendar year 2012 15 2018

Year No. of BPs sanctioned
2012 91

2013 69

2014 B2

2015 48

2016 4
(May-2017 13

2018 Mot provided

Mo information regarding as to how many sanctioned Building Plans, wherein specified reasonable
time of completion of building or work lapsed after sanction of BPs and construction of building or
work were continued without fresh sanction, was provided to audit. Therefore, in the absence of
desired information it was not possible to examine in Audit as to how many cases were there
wherein specified reasonable time had lapsed after sanction of BPs and no fresh sanction has been
obtained, as required in the Section-246, during the year 2012 1o upto May-2017 or in previous
years to continue the construction work. Further, the cases pertaining to the period from June-2017
to March-2018 were not provided. In such a scenario, there remains the possibility of violation of
provision of NDMC Act 1994,

(il Completion Certificate (CC) & Completion Plan cases : Section 251 of the NDMC Act, 1994
provides (Completion Certificate) ="(1) Every person who employs an Architect registered with the
Council or an architect or an engineer or a person approved by the Chairperson to design or erect a
building or execute any work shall, within one month after the completion of the erection of the
building or execution of the work, deliveror send or cause to be delivered or sent to the Chairperson
a notice in writing of such completion accompanied by a certificate in the form prescribed by bye-
lawes made in this behalf and shall give to the Chairperson all necessary facilities for the inspection of
such building or work, [2) No person shall occupy or permit to be occu pied any such buildings or use
or permit to be used any building or a part thereof affected by any such work until permission has
been granted by the Chairperson in this behalf in accordance with bye-laws made under this act.
Provided that if the Chairperson fails within a period of thirty days after the receipt of the notice of
completion to communicate its refusal to grant such permission, such permission shall be deemed
to have been granted.”
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The details regarding sanctioned Building Plans (BPs) and Completion Certificate [CCs) &
Completion Plan (CPs) issued during the calendaryear 2012-16 are asunder:

Table no. 6.4 : Detalls of the CC & CF are to be [ssued

Year No.of sanctioned BPs | No.of CCs &CPsissued | No.of CCs& CPstobe issued
2012 a1 3l 59

2013 69 | 50 19

2014 82 45 37

2015 48 44 04

2016 44 38 06

May-2017 13 | 08 05

2018 Notprovided | Not provided Not provided

Total 347 | 217 130

As is evident from above table the Architect Department did not provide the requisite detail for the
period from June-2017 to March-2018. Audit observed that in the above 347 sanctioned BPsin 130
sanctioned building plan cases, the CC & CP were to be issued. However, due to non furnishing of
records, audit could not ascertain in these cases as to whether the constructions/works have been
completed within specified period and notices have been received for CC & CP from the parties. In
case where the construction has been completed but the notice for CC & CP has not been received,
the possibility of unauthorized occupation of building and loss of revenue im the form of fees
prescribed under Para 2,15 of New Unified Building Bye-Laws for Delhi, 2016 cannot be Ruled out;
evien though in compliance of above provisions of NDMC Act, Architect Department is required to
maintain proper record to ensure transparency for welfare of the people/parties as promised under
the Citizen Charter by NDME. Moreover, in case of non issuance of Completion
Certificate/Completion Plan and possibility of violation of Building Bye Laws resulting in
unauthorized construction & encroachment and illegal occupants of premises cannot be ruled out.

6.2.3 Non maintenance of Escrow Account in respect of receipts under mixed use properties

Para 15.9 "Registration of mixed use premises and payment of charges™ of MPD 2021 envisaged the
following warious charges of mixed use-premises should be collected from the owner/ allottes/
resident of plot etc.

* Registrationcharges; » Annual mixed use charges;
* Dnetime parking development charges s Tentimes penalty of unauthorized mived use

Further Appendix 29,1 "Fixation of charges for mixed use and commercial use of premises™ of
Building Bye Laws 1983 envisaged that the amount 5o collected shall be depesited in an Escrow
Account by the Local Body concerned for incurring expenditure for development of parking sites,
augmentation of amenities/infrastructure and environmental improvement programmes, for the
areas in which the mixed usefcommercial street fall, after consulting all stakeholder including
traders in the area. & separate account of the income and expenditure of the Escrow Account shall
be maintained by the local authority and a quarterly statement of the same shall be rendered by the
local authority to the Government,

Audit cbserved from General Ledger Reports (dated 23™ March 2019) that total amount of T6.06
crore had been collected utpo 20 March 2019 on account of registration of mixed use premises
urder the “Major Head - 3111202°,

Howewver, no specific Escrow account was maintained by the Department and quarterly statement of
account was also not forwarded to the Government resultantly the collected income had not been
incurred on the specified purpose in consultationwith the stake holders including traders of the area.
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6.2.4 Irregular expenditure of 71.10 crore on deployment of technical and other staff without
sanction

The deployment of the following posts was made without obtaining the sanction of the Competent
Authority and hence expenditure incurred there against was irregular, The details was as under:

Table no. 6.5 : Expenditure on salary on non-sanctioned post as on 31122019

5 Mame of post Mo.of | BasicPay (asperDTL) | Periodin Total amt
No. past w.e.f.2006 month (inT)
1 Executive Engineer 1 26600 48 1276800
2 Asst. Engineer 1 24400 60 1464000
3 Data Entry Operator 5 11600 B0 3480000
4 Driver 1 11300 156 1762800
5 Regular Muster Roll™ ] 33124 156 3100406
TOTAL 11084006

Thus NDMC made an expenditure of ¥1.10 crore without proper sanction for the posts which was
irregular.

6.2.5 Inconsistency in measuring the distance between Property No. 28, Hanuman Road to
Central Protected Monument of Jantar Mantar

The Scheme No.4648 for sanction of Building Plans for demaolition and reconstruction in respect of
Property No.28, Hanuman Road, New Delhi was submitted by a party on 6th January 2006 which
was approved by the Chairperson on 1% March 2006 subject to obtaining the NoC from ASI as the
property falls under the regulated/prohibited zone of Central Protected Monument of Jantar
Mantar. ASl accorded NoC/permission on 23 May 2006 toissue alicense for a period of one year for
recanstruction of residential building upto maximum height of 13.56m as the property falls under
regulated arca of Jantar Mantar at 2 distance of 296.00m. The party after demolition of the said
building did not commence the construction work but it again submitted a revised building plan
vide Scheme No.00053/2008 dated 15" April 2008. NDMC approved revised proposal on
12" August 2008 after the NoC/Permission of ASI dated 7° July 2008 was statedly received by the
party. While granting the permission by AS|, it was mentioned in the NoC that the site proposed for
reconstruction was located at a distance of 302m (leaving 6m on front as set back) from Jantar
Mantar in accordance with the fresh proposal submitted by the party.

Audit observed that the distance from the existing site (23, Hanuman Road) to the prohibited/
Regulated Zone of Central Protected Monument of Jantar Mantar was variously shown as 302 mtrs
(7 July 2008) as against 295 mirs. (previously declared by AS on 23™ May 2006). Moreover, it is
depicted in the distance map attached with NoC granted by ASl in May-2006 that the distance
considered from the Jantar Mantar to rear side of the plot was 296m. Howewver, the permission was
granted on the basis of distance calculated as 302m after leaving 6m on front as set back of the plot
in August-2008, The NoC statedly granted by the ASI in 2008 was addressed anly to the party and no
copy of this letter was found endorsed to the NDMC. To verify the receipt of NOC in NDMC, the
general diary for the year 2008 of Architect Departrment was called in audit by which the letter was
dealt with, but, no information was given to audit, Itis not clear in this case that how did Architect
Department in NDMC satisfy itself about the actual distance given the fact that it is shown
differently in two NoCs by the Archaeological Survey of India of 2006 and 2008 respectively.

Mote 10: (Minimum Wages rate of BMR at 5. No. 5 has been taken conservatively from the reports of the
working of the Minimurm Wages Act - 1948 for the year 2006.)
11 : The total amount of ¥ 1.10 crore Is complled based on the minlmum baslc pay of the respective
post. The Departmient while seeking regularization needs to caloulate the actual amount, which
would invariably be higher.
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The NOC for reconstruction of the building was approved with restriction upto the maximum height
of 13.56m from ground level upto mumty with 1.98m deep basement below ground level by ASIin
2006. However, the height of the same building both permissible and proposed was increasedf
revised to 15m and 14.90m underthe revised building plans submitted by the party in April 2008. In
the absence of completion plam in the Chief Architect Department, the physical structure of the
building after leaving the setbacks area of construction, height of the building and FAR in
accordance with the building plan considered and NoC issued to the party by the Archaeological
Surveyof India (AS]) on 7th July 2008 remained unverifiable.

6..2.6 Sanction of building plans in respect of MPs Flats and Constitutional Club

The Building Plan section had to maintain the following time schedule which has been fixed for
sanction of Building plans and issue of completion certificates/Completion plans:

Table no. 6.6: Time schedule for sanctloning the Bullding PMan

Iterm of work Schedule time fixed
Decisbon on application for sanction of Bullding Plans will be communicated. Within 60 days.
Decisbon on revalidation of Plans will be communicated. Within 30 days.
Decision on Com pletion Certificate/Plans will be communicated. Within 30 days.

Test check of the case file relating to the MPs Flats at Vithal Bhai Patel House, Rafi Marg, consists of
Mavalankar Hall, Vithal Bhai Patel House, Constitution Club, Servant Quarters and Garage, ESS &
Pump Roam, Swimming Pool, AC Plants ete. revealed that the Building Plans for construction of 22
additional suits received on 207 July 2001 and approved by NDMC on 17" September 2001 was
subject to compliance of the conditions, however, due to non compliance with the conditions the
same were not released to the party, The revised Building Plan was again received on 17" May 2005
and was approved on 17" June 2005 by the Department after the stated receipt of relaxation/
permission from PM office,

Audit observed that the work for construction of additional 22 suits falls under the Lutyen's
Bungalow Zone (LBZ) where no additional suits were authorized to be constructed on the existing
piece of land. Also, the mentioned order issued by Prime Minister Office under which the
relmcation/permission was accorded for construction of 22 numbers of additional suits in LBZ Zone
was not furnished by the Chief Architect Department. In addition evidence regarding handing over
of 22 suits constructed to the user Department and issue/frelease of completion certificate/plan
was also not found from the records made available. Similarky the records/documents priorto 1988
regarding approval of Building Plans were not found available in the concerned file. This instance
indicates poor maintenance, even of records related to iImportant cases.

6.2.7 Non adherence of proper follow up action after sanction of building plan in respect of
property no. 36, Hanuman Road

Section 7 of Building Bye Laws, 1983 and terms and conditions of sanction letter of building plan
envisaged that the partyis togive notice before commencement of building work at site, progress of
work and notice for completion to the NDMC from time to time.

In this case, the building plan for addition/alteration of 35, Hanuman Road, New Delhi was
approved by the NDMC in June-2013 and Dctober-2014. Audit observed that neither the party
submitted the notice for commencement and status of completion of work nor did NDMC press
upon the party to submit the requisite documents & carry out the inspection to ascertain the
progress of the construction work in accordance with the Building Bye Laws and NDMC Act as no
details were found on record made available to audit. This instance is illustrative of potential risk of
impraper up keeping of the records in other cases.
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6.2.8 Non compliance of complaints recelved against the owners of the properties running
commercial activities inresidential premises

As por NDMC public netification dated 26™ June 2007, registration of mixed use premises was to be
done before 207 June 2007. And as per Para 15.9{iv) & (v] of MPD, 2021, where the properties found
to be under mixed use, without registration or in violation of the provision of MPD 2021 shall be
liable to pay, to the local body, a penalty amounting to 10 times the annual conversion charges for
mixed use,

Test check of file regarding plot No. 13, Aradhana Colony, Sector 13, B.K. Puram New Delhi revealed
that the Secretary, Burmah-shell Co-operative Housing Society Ltd., Aradhana Colony, Ring Road,
R.K. Puram, Sector-XIll, New Delhi had requested to the NDMC on 22™ May 2009 that commercial
activitics specially in House No.1, 5, 9 & 12 of Aradhana Colony have been going on (whereas land
use was residential). The said society pursued the matter for stoppage of commercial activities with
NDMC since 117 October 2006, However, action taken by NDMC was not on records made available
to audit, It indicates that NDMC is not taking action promptly against the errant residents as the
complaint was pending since 2006. Non levying of penalty against the errant residents is also a
potential loss to NDMC in monetary terms under mix land use policy

6.2.9 Adopting different Norms in calculationfrecovery of one time parking development
charges from the applicants of miboed land use

Para 15.4 [v) heading “other terms and conditions” of MPD 2021 envisaged that "Parking at the rate
of 2.0 Equivalent Car Space (ECS) per 100 sqm of built up area shall be provided within the premises,
Where this Is not avallable, cost of development of parking shall be payable by the plot allottee/
owner to the local body concerned. This condition shall apply even if residential premises are used
only for professional activity” In case where the plot area exceeded 300 sqm., 1 ECS for every 100
sqm built up area for parking space shall be provided within the residential plot [Para 4.4.3 (i) (B)
of MPD 2021). In addition to above, clause (d) under the heading “procedure for registration/
annual mixed use charges” of NDMC notification dated 26™ June 2007 stated that the ownerf
allotteefresident/user of the plot/dwelling unit under the mixed land use shall also be liable to pay
for development of parking for one ECS per 50 sgm. of plot area @ 12,10,500/-.

Audit observed from three test checked cases in respect of guest houses, furnished to audit, that the
onetime charges for development of parking wene not worked out uniformy; details are as under:-

Table no. 6.7 : Detalls of the cases

5. No. | Property No. MNorms belng adopted for calculation of one time parking charges
s 106, Babar Road, | Inthis case, the ECSworked out by segregating the built uparea tobe
New Delhi used for guest house (18,900 ECS) + built up arca to be used for residential

purpose [3.852 ECS) minus ECS available (13,302 ECS) under the premises.
Tokal ECS chargeable 9.45 ECS,

i 117, Babar Road, | Inthiscase, the ECSworked out ontotal ECS required ongross builtup
New Delhi anea (9.556 ECS say 10.0 ECS (rounding off) + bullt up area to be used for
guest house (7.06 ECS)minus area provided for open space at ground
floor (considering the norms 23 Sqm parking space required for 1 ECSin
openancaas per MPD 2021)

3 Plot No.13 Aradhnal Inthis case, the ECSwasworked out on the total plot area.

Enclave, Sector 13
R.K. Puram, Mew
Delhi,




=x,fr. 3, wires i anfifes e witen frad-2018

I T H.1 4 3= W ¢ fF angen faam 3 fiffe yeeete W wa v ddem
¥19,89 v Freen, WE & agen | 4t vt e fam wen 9 ol dE el § s
S S AT U H A, 6 a7 oi i F e 12,90 T #i 217.97 Tra s w5
TR 1 5w G qe SR E vre  fw nidE | v fitem #51 roen F vwer @ 4t

6.2,10 W s 106, aran g # fafie swdrm gee #t et 1w

s sftex w1 qfa % fofim Ivam F soimn 2 e @ galm afige % fram el
7" % um (4) & Feum (5) § o s i i w afits i ewin geE .
Lo ksicichsearkEak o il

227.14 v 1 faim IvEm o ®t agel & 95 6 @ [ (mias) 9 w6 106,
ar T, 7 fireit F T wEE wEm w1 srEla 25 sl 2011 S e $ o o5 o i
M F 4% T v d TR wEw wen # fAv o ams 1en 3 et =6 b vl
wafefad fafte amfafadt wawfag =1 w22 w2 fm | wi smam woad 2016-17 o #
e FpAn 1wt fafim 3w g 27,23 852/~ w1 FRan 3l e e e w5 e R
fer 4 i 2016 1w fem | 3w afeeral | 2w e # fir o o ( frest Twmel)
3 (forama fiw 04 3 2016) 5 o6 # 9fd 9F F 9 gfaw fen @ fs 3=t 2001-12 9
2015-16 1 A F SR T T30 TE T 91 | Wi 5 e §19E A7 96 #1 Ut
F A @ I & watw S 4 S EEowd g a5 s fifm e e
Hin w1 7 @ w18 Aifen sl e g e, TU v o des wER T 4 21 2016
1 giaa fem o fie o ez or e =afeerm soferd il 3 T Ten aar 5 faf o
6 & wifn wn o T (04 3 2016) FE oftan # v vl = e ol w2,
gafery, & wofe =1 I9am 7& 1w ; gafag 5 5w Far e v Tan ® fog 3 ga .
I F AR € | e 70w F A wF R 4 o T ofter s e
wEH Te  fig 78T fomn, e weem w1

o Tl 3 T fF qEdEi-2021 #0159 (4) F agen T fifim s %
wnferal = o wiiym s w0 % fog el o, o = 9simm 0w A ) s s
ferelt it wifirserdt gr ww Wi w0t & fo fin Halim =f 2010-11 4 2015-16 % A W
e % e %1 99gin e vra & o e mn & e, Y wdte it T e

T aifafem fres smeem a9t 2011-12 | 2015-16 % T ofis faitm awim 1o s
= % foru =i =i v T = T a | e fawm g fafie soEm = afafes fafh w5
gfifrm w0 % fag wlien S s F i % 500 236,19 260/~ (2732 852/-n 5 =4,
2011-12 | 2015-16)F TG THAA FT F9EAN | THR 8! fwa1 = /Fal |

6.2.11 o wiE s 3t guiar g e fm i Prfor & e S oo o wme oo )

fafiezn, ool 1983 awm 7 v fafezn o 2 vl v % fram ol el F vieeen w9
i ¢ fr e W Az W i wE e w0 @ e, wW F el a1 s ) ogan
E-TE W EEeEt w A

¢ 2014 ¥ forifemr wiftar fae o, @t o R, = Rl ¥ 2w W s fmin % fag
uF v e w wel 4 d ot 1 sz 3 auwes feld o T dan i S 2005 F Pefo w6
¥ o T ai wr 2016 F wo = fam 1 20 fogEr 2016 T Fritem fio = arqam, T
7 wngz W wv Fmto ww g s fam s ool | gl warrrsgeim e wa ey
o afte o e o forn o 1 et sfufem S 252 F AN, TR B e W
o T B T e sfufre o sfeafom e ® sgen s s e st §)
T, CEEE & wEmd 2008 ¥ W@ Wt it Sfew Wl fen s o # faere W
SErE wiAr 3F T s | fa agefa (dal g died) % sees s aren v
Wter vy e v wreitwr S § aits w e vl oo gen 3o S gl s e
AR ¥ O w2t w5t = i |




Annual Audit Report of NDMC - 2018

it Is seen from the above that in case no. 1, the Architect Department worked out the total ECS
chargeable on the total built up area of plot/property amounting to T19.89 lakh, recovered from the
party. If NDMC adopted the same norms as worked out in case no.1, an amount of 22.90 lakh and
T17.97 lakh more could be recovered in case no.2 & 3 respectively. Itis evident from the above that
there wasnounifermity in caleulating the ECS chargeable from the parties.

6.2.10 MNonrecoveryof mixed use charges from property no, 106, Babar Road

Sub clause (e) of Clause (E) “Terms and Condition” of Motification (26th June 2007) regarding
Conversion Charges for mixed use land of the residential premises envisaged that the annual mibed
use charges shall be made by the ownerfallottee/resident/user of the premises to the local body.

Permission to run the guest house in premise 106, Babar Road, New Delhi, was granted in favour of
one Shri Anand Kumar in 25" February 2011 after recovery of mixed use charges of 727,14 lakh,
After lapse of five year, Sh. Anand Kumar handed over the property to M/s Evergreen Hospitality
Limited Liability Partnership on lease to run a guest house in the same premises. On this basis, Sh.
Deepak Kumar had applied on 4™ April 2016 for new permission to run guest house and deposited
17,23,852/- as an annual mixed use charges in the year 2016-17. it has been observed from the
records that Sh. Anand Kumar (previous user) had intimated (except one dated 4% April 2016) after
lapse of 05 years that he had not run the guest house during the period 2011-12 to 2015-16. Neither
was information regarding intimation 1o NDMC for nonrunning of guest house by the owner norany
notice issued by the NDMC to the Owner for demand of annual mixed use charges was found on
records made available to audit. However, new user Sh, Deepak Kumar had intimated on 4th April
2016 that 5h. Anand Kumar was not in position to run the guest house due to some personal
unavaoidable reasons as he could not comply with the remaining conditions in sald premises till date
(i.e. 4" April 2018), s0, he could not use the property; therefore, Sh, Deepak Kumar wanted touse same
area for running the guest house. Merely on the basis of this statement, the Department agreed that
Sh. Anand Kumar{previous user) had not used the said premises for running the guesthouse.

Audit observed that the NDMC was responsible to conduct a test check of properties under mibed
wse, whether registered with it or not as per 15.9 (IV) of MPD-2021. But no authority of the
Department had conducted any such test check to ensure whether said premises was used for guest
house or notduring the related years from 2010-11 to 2015-16.

Further, No annual demand-note for depositing annual mixed use charges was sent to Sh. Anand
Kumar for the previous assessmentyears from 2011-12 to 2015-16, 50, possibility of loss of revenue
of ¥36,19,260/- (17,23,852/- x 5 year w.e.f. 2011-12 to 2015-16) could not be Ruled out due to
Department'sinaction to test check toascertain the actual position of mixed use.

6.2.11 5ite for Petrol Pump occupied after construction without obtaining the Completion
Certificate and Completion Plan

section 7 of Building Bye Laws, 1983 and Terms and Conditions of sanction letter of building plan
envisaged that the partyis to give notice before commencement of building work at site, progress of
work and notice for completion tothe NOMC from time totime.

A building plan was sanctioned 1o construct a petrol pump at Brigadiar Hoshiar Singh Marg, Laxmi
Bai Nagar, New Delhi in May-2014, Audit observed from the records made available to it that the
construction work was commenced in June-201% and completed in March-2016. As per the
inspection report dated 20™ September 2016, the Party had completed all the construction work at
site and occupied the premises without obtaining Completion Certificate/Completion Plan from
the NDMC, As per the Section 252 of NDMC Act, it is compulsory for the party to comply the Terms
and Condition for obtaining the CC/CP before occupying the site in accordance with the conditions
as enumerated In the NDMC Act. However, NDMC Issued last notice to the partyin July-2018 and no
penal action was initiated against the party. Running a petrol pump being a hazardous nature of
business without permission (CFC & C/P), s an unacceptable risk as it should only be allowed to run
afterverification of security measures by a Competent Authority.
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6.2.12 Short recovery of fees and charges of T350470/- in respect of permission of building plan
of Mational Sport Club of India

The following three building plans for addition falteration/renovation files were provided to audit:

Table no. 6.8 : Detalls of the Bullding Man

SNo.| Permission required Date of sanction of plan Plan valid upto
For Billiard and Gymnasium 22nd September 2004 10th September 2009
Far temporary structure 26th February 2015 25th May 2015
For renovation of external fagade 28th February 2017 26th January 2022

Audit observed that Fees and Charges on account of Plan submission fees and stacking charges have
not been taken/worked out by NDMC in accordance with the revised rate as given in Unified
Building Bye Laws applicable w.e.f 22™ March 2016 at the time of approval of 3" building Plan
resulting in short recovery of revenue of 13,50,470/- from the party. Moreover, on inspection of the
premises ason 12" March 2015, it was found by Special Technical Cell {STC) field staff that party has
occupied the Banquet Hall without obtaining the CC/CP. The construction activity at toilet on
ground floor of office block was also in contravention of the building plan sanctioned. A notice was
issued to party for submitting CC & CP plan in March-2015. However, outcome of the case is not
available on record. This indicates poor fallow up on the issue and neglect of recoverable revenue to
NDMC.

6.2.13 Shortcomingsin Conversion of Residential Property to mixed land use to run Guest House

Para 252 of NDMC Act, 1994 provides that “No person shall, without the written permission of the
Chairperson, or otharwise than in conformity with the conditions, if any, of such permission.

(a) Use or permit to be used for human habitation any part of a building not originally erected or
authorized to be used for that purpose or not used for that purpose before any alteration has been
made therein by any work executed in accordance with the provisions of this Act and the bye-laws
made there under;

(b}Change or allow the change of the use of any land or building;
[¢) Convert or allow the conversion of one kind of tenement into another Kind.

A party submitted the request to rum a guest house in the residential property No., 112, Babar Road
New Delhi under mixed land use policy on 14" May 2010. The case was considered by the then
Chairperson, NDMC on 257 June 2010 and returned back the file with remarks “ensure all norms of
Master Plan/BBLFLBZ narms as applicable. No UfG/Construction should exist and no other vialation
of any act/Bye laws should be there”™, On the basis of these remarks the then Chief Architect issued
formal permission/NOC to the party on 2™ July 2010 subject to compliance of the certain condition
i.e. NOCfor Chief Fire Officer, NOC from DCP, Licensing, NOC from DCP, Traffic etc.

Audit observed that the then Chief Architect issued the final permission to run a guest house to the
party on 20™ July 2012. However, the approval of the then Chairman, NDMC was not taken at the
time of issuing of final permission to party which was required under para 252 of NDMC Act, 1994,
Further, the Inspection Report of DCP, Traffic dated 117 Navember 2011 indicated that the guest
house was operational at the site in the year 2011 even though the permission was under
considerationwith NDMC and notissued tothe party,
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6.2.14 Discrepancies in respect of permission granted for erection of temporary structure/
hangers and pandals etc.

{1} Short recovery of 15,13,345/- from the parties due to application of incorrect rates : The
Architect Department grants permission for erection of termporary structure in the form of hangerf
pandal in Hotels of New Delhi area holding Exhibition-cum sale or other functions after receipt of
permission chargesinaddition to deposit of security deposit @ 10 percent of permission charges.

In December-1599, the them Chairman, NDMC approved rates for granting permission of
hanger/pandal with increase in rate @ 10 percent over the previous year i.e. 1999-2000.
Accordingly, the Architect Department was to recover the permission charges by enhancing the
rates by 10 percent eachyear from the year 2000-01.

During the test check of records made available to audit, it has been observed that Architect
Department worked out incorrect rate in respect of 69 cases while granting permission for enection
of temporary structure/pandals for which there was a short recovery of ¥5,13,345/- (14,45,430/-
for 56 cases of the year 2013-14 and 167,915/- for 13 cases of the year 2014-15). It has further been
observed that Architect Department had applied rates for permission charges less than the actual
applicable rates during the years from 2001-02 to 2014-15, The details are asunder:

Table no. 6.9 : Rates applicable from 2000-2001 to 2014-15 and 2017-18

Wear Rate applled by Architect Department | Rate to be applied with Increase @ 10 Diff. of rates
While granting permisslcn percent from the previous year rates (in )
(in ¥ per sq. fr.) (in ¥ per 5q. fr.) (2-2)
1 2 3 4
2001-02 1.94 2.13 (instead of 2.11) 0.19
H02-03 213 2.34 0.21
| 2003-04 2.34 2.57 0.23
2004-05 .57 2.83 0.26
H05-06 2.83 311 0.28
2006-07 3.11 142 0.31
2007-08 3.42 3.76 0.34
2008-09 3.76 4.14 0.38
2009-10 4,14 455 0.41
2010-11 4,55 5.00 0.45
2011-12 5.00 5.50 0.50
Mn2-13 5.50 5.05 0.55
2013-14 .05 6.67 0.62
2014-15 6.67 7.34 0.67
201718 9.76 9.77 0.01

The details of cases received and amount recovered there from during 2001-2002 to 2014-2015 and
2017-2018 except 69 cases [noted above) pertaining to 2013-14 and 2014-2015 were not verifiable
inaudit due to non-production of records.
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As per NDMC circular 2011, while granting the permission for erecting of pandals/hangers, the
Department may ensure that the following documents were submitted by the party.

li] Requestletterfromfirm/fparty.
i) Planofthe areato be covered under tent, pandal or shamivana.

(i) Copy of demand draft on afc of permission charges and security deposit charges @10
percent of permission changes.

{iv) Indemnity bond infavour of NDMC.

vl NWOCfromDCP (Security)

(vi) NOCfrom DCP(Traffic).

(wil] MNOCfrom DCP[Licensing & Controlling)

{vili) NOCTfromthe ownerfauthorized person of the bullding

fix) NOCTrom CFO [tobe submitted before start of such events), undertaking to be given,

Test check of 56 cases revealed that the compliance of the condition mentioned at Serial No.(ii) and
[wii) abowe were not verifiable to as the same were not found on records made available to audit.

(i) Non maintenance of Security Deposit Registers ;

Section 22.6 of CPWD works Manual 2014 stipulates regarding responsibility for prompt refund of
security deposit in order to avold delay in the refund of security deposit to the applicant. For this
purpose every month a list of all the cases where the security deposit becomes due for refund is
required to be put up to concerned authority and the security deposit is refunded without waiting for
any application from the contractor Agency.

Test check of 39 cases for erection of hangers/pandal depicted that an amount of ¥2.44 lakh on
account of security deposit was received from the applicant, out of which an amount of ¥0.68 lakh
was refunded and T1.76 lakh is still lying with NDMC. The example mentioned above is illustrative
and not exhaustive based on the test check of the number of cases provided to audit; the details are
asunder:

Table no. 6.10: Details of the Security Deposit

5 | Year Ho. of permidssion | Amountof]  Amt. of Security Total Security Balance
Mo, cates made permisshon| Deposit (I8 10 percent |  Deposit refund | security deposit
avallable to audit | charges | of permibsslon charges) | made a5 par record|  with NDMC

i 2004-15 13 692332 G9242 22085 47157

2 | 200516 16 719924 BI538 45965 36573

E Hde-17 3 2AEERD 24686 i} HERE

4 | 2007-18 2 273460 27346 o 27345

5 | 200819 5 408054 40809 0 40504
Total 39 FI4DED 44621 EROSO 176571

Further, Architect Department was requested to provide the record/register for maintenance of
security deposit received from the applicant on account of permission of erection of temporary
structure/hangers and pandals in different Hotels in NDMC area. In reply (dated 11% July 2017,
Department stated that no such recerd is being maintained for the purpose and the refunds are
processed inthe individual files.

In the absence of a consolidated record like security depasit register it is not understood as to how
the monitaring of receipt, refund and adjustment of security depasit was carried out by the
Architect Department.
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Replies to Audit observations in this report from Chief Architect are still awaited [February-2020)
CONCLUSION :

The Internal Control emvironment in the Chief Architect Department was found to be extremely
poor with it being devoid of even basic control measures such as chronological entry of
applications/complaints recelved and their subsequent monitoring till disposal. Non production
of records to audit also indicates a lack of willingness towards accountability of its working on
part of the Chief Architect Department. The various observations as brought out in the audit
report also point out towards inadequate adherence to the extant Rules and Regulation to
protect the interests of NDMC. Thus, the possibility of loss of revenue and deviations from the
warious bye laws regarding construction, misuse etc remains atan unacceptable level of risk.
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CHAPTER-7

COMMERCIAL DEPARTMENT

7.1 Loss of revenue amounting to 16,93,660/- due to wrong application of Fixed charge and
Power Factor.

{1} Under billing In Delhi Metrro Rall Corporation [DMRC) bills due to wrong application of
Fixed Charge.

Delhi Electricity Regulatory Commission [DERC) Electricity Tariff Schedule for the Fr-2017-18-
NDMC, stipulates the rate of fixed charge for DMRC w.e.f. 01" September 2017 as T130/KvAS
Month. A comparative test check of Form 2.12-D with detailed base data and DMEC bill for the
month of March-2018 revealed that fixed charge has been recovered at the rate of T125/KVAY
Month instead of T130/KVA/Month. Due to wrong application of fixed charge commercial
Department made under billing amounting to 16,43,960/- (T37380/- PM for 17 months) in DMRC
bills during the period 1° September 2017 to 31" January 2014,

(i) Lossof revenue dueto non-application of correct power Factor.

As per Table No.56 of DERC Tariff Schedule for 2017-18-NDMC energy charge for Small Industrial
Power is T7.90/KVAh and the power factor for this category has to be considered at 0.91 for slab
10-100%W and above 100 kW at 0.93 for billing. A test check of monthly detailed data provided to
audit revealed that the rate of energy charge has been applicd in MU without applying the power
factor and converting the KW to KVAh in respect of Small Industrial Power - consumers. The non-
conversion of MU into KVAh has resulted In under billing of Electric charges to the extent of
T49700/- during the pernod 2016-17 to 2017-18. This under billing relates to the period 2016-18
only. This under billing prior of this period cannot be Ruled out and require examination by the
Commercial Department.

DISCLAIMER :

All the facts/figures in the report are based on the information supplied by the auditee unit and
that audit Department is not responsible for any discrepancy in this regard.

mm
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VERIES AT THE INSTAN F IT

Annexure-]

On being pointed out and regular follow-up by Audit, the following recoveries were made by the
various Departments (March-2018).

Al
No,

Department

Brief Particulars of recoveries

Amount

(% in crore)

Property Tax

Non-recovery of arrears of property tax
(Para 2.3.6 of 2015 {Annexure-XI})
2.3.6 [iil) of 2015 {Annexure-XI1}

4.01

0.56

Finance &
Accounts

Excess payment to the pensioners - ¥22.14 lakh
(Para 3.2 of 2011)

Overpayment of $19.76 lakh due to payment of
family pension at enhance rabes after expiny of
admissible period

(Para 5.1 of 2014)

Non-deduction of commuted value of pension
(Para 2.2 of 2005 [B) Table-6)

Overpayment of Family Pensioners

(Para 2.2 of 2005 (C) No.2 Table-8)

42602

T5004

77814

294072

Total

489492

0.04

Municipal
Housing

Inordinate delays in vacation of Municipal
Accommodations :

(i} Gtr. No.b Gandhi Sadan Mandir Marg,
Outstanding dues of T26.62 lakh

(Para 2.1 {i} of 2017)

(i) Qtr. Mo A-2 {1I1) Palika Milan, 5P Marg,
unauthorized retention of quarter for six
vears after death of allottee, cutstanding
dues of 719,06 lakh

(Para 2.1{ii} of 2017)

280632

25000

Total

305632

0.03

Electricity

Non-inclusionfshort levy of other factor charges
amaunting to ¥23.43lakh in Road Restoration (RR)
charges by Distribution South Division

{Chapter-8 Para Il of 2017)

0.04

Grand Total

4.68
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Annexure=||
(Chapter-4, Para-4.3)
NTIN INF 11

5.No.| Name of record finformation

1 Main file/Policy file dealing with the various issues of concession agreement as per
different clause of agreement

Copyof notice inviting tender for concession agreement.

Copy of request for proposal from bidders for concession agreement.

Minutes of pre-bid meeting,

Ll

Month-wise details of periodical tests and remedial measure as per clause 5.4 of Project
Implementation of concession agreement.

o

Copy of readiness certificate issued toconcessionaine

wj

Copy of monthly, quarterly and annual report since implementation of agreement and
records of quantum (measure in tones) of Biodegradable and Non-biodegradable MSW
and Landscape waste deposited at the landfill facility and treatment facility.

B Copy of monthly statement of Tipping Fee containing separate details of quantity of
Biodegradable and Mon-biodegradable MSW and Landscape waste

9 Details of payment made for reimbursement of Service Tax /VAT etc.

10 | The details of the new project facilities initiated by the concessionaire for the
implementation of project as per Schedule-B.

11 Mechanism created for handling of complaints by Concessionaire/NDMC as per Clause 8.2
of Schedule °C* of Concession Agrecment.

12 Month-wise details of the vehicles attached for collection and transportation of MSW and
Landscape waste in accordance with Clause 2.2.1 of Schedule ‘D" of Concession
Agreement,

13 Details of the transfer station proposed to be constructed by NDMC and constructed by
the Concessionaire as per Clause 2 of Schedule "B’ of Concession Agreement.

14 Manth-wise details of the Manpower deployment by the Concessionaire as per Clause 6 of
Schedule ‘B’ of Concession Agreement.

15 How Concessionaire had ensured that M5W collected from the 5treet Corner Bins,
Garbage Station and Landscape Waste were not mixed at any stage of collection or
transportation as per Clause 10 of Schedule ‘'8 of Concession Agreement.

16 Whether NODMC had provided space for workshop to the Concessionaire as per Clause 5 of
Schedule 'C’ of Concession Agreement, if yes details thereof may please be furnished.

17 List of the records maintained by the Concessionaire in compliance of Clause 2.1.3 (e) of
Operations and Maintenance of Schedule D of the Concession Agreement.

18 Details of the Design Parameters and Operation Plan decided in acoordance with Clause
1.1 & 1.2 of 5chedule ‘C* of Concession Agreement.

19 The procedure and guidelines for carrying out inspection by Independent Consultant
regarding transportation of Hazardous waste or recyclable substances to the treatment
facility or the Landfill facility in accordance with Clause 4.4 of Schedule *D* of Concession
Agreement.

20 Copy of the monthly complaint and redressal records maintained by the Concessionaire as
per Clause 5.6 of Schedule "I of Concession Agreement.
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21

Moenthly/QuarterlyfAnnual report submitted by the Concessionaire to Independent
Consultantf NDMC in compliance of the clause 7.1 to 7.2.9 of Schedule ‘D" of the
Concession Agreement.

22

Details of the any notice issued and penalties levied to the Concessionaire in accordance
with the provision of Concession Agreement,

23

Schedule "E’ of the Concession Agreement envisaged the duties and responsibilities of
Independent Consultant. In this connection, the following records/replies may please be
furnished:

a)

Details of the Review and monitoring of the Transition Plan and Operation Plan submitted
by the Concessionaire tothe Consultant.

b}

Details of the verification of check of weighment and testing of the MSW at the treatment
facility/Landfill facility.

c)

Details of Report to the parties on the various physical, technical and financial aspecto
the project.

d}

Review of the monthly progress report submitted by the Concessionaire during the
implementation period and its conformity with the Transition Plan & Operation Plan and
report on the same to the NDMC.

Mechanism created for monitoring at Treatment Facility and Landfill Facility by the
Independent Consultant,

Details of the Random Inspection Report of project facilities by the Independent
Consultant.

g

Details of the project review meeting during implementation and operation period.

h)

Details of the records maintained by the consultant in respect of the activities undertaken
by itin discharge of its functions and responsibilities.

24

Copy of the recommendatory action and action plan prepared by NDMC in accordance
with Para 2.3.1 of Municipal Solid Waste Management (MSWM) Rules 2016,

25

Details/Report, if any, regarding critical assessment of the current status of the SW
under the NDMC area in accordance with Para 2.3.2 of MSWM Rules 2016.

26

The information as to whether NDMC has taken views and willingness of the stakeholders
to bridge the gaps or improve the level of service through consultative process as per
provision 2.3.3 of MSWH Rules 2016.

rry

The information as to whether NDMC prepared short term and long term MSWM plan in
accordance with the provision of Para 2.3.4 of 5WM Rules 2016.

28

The information as to whether NDMC prepared the implementation plan indicating
allocation of resources and specifying timelines in accordance with the provision of Para
2.3.50f SWM Rules 2016.

29

Both the Local Body and PPP operator should be accountable for their roles to ensure
successful and sustainable project implementation after approval of final MSWM plan
along with financial plan by elected body of Local Authority in accordance with provision
2.3.7 of MSW Rule 2016. The contracting model for services to be cutsourced [PPP model)
or private operator should be transparent and performance based. Details of action as per
provision of MW Rules 2016 may be furnished.

30

The information as to whether the NDMC has forwarded any report as per provision 2.4 of
MSWM Rules 2016 for monitoring the compliance with the MSWM plan and SWM Rules to
Central Pollution Control Board (CPCB) OR Whether CPCB had taken any initiative for
manitoring the compliance with MSWM Plan and SWM Rules.
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31

The information as to whether any assessment/survey as per provision 2.5 of M5W Rules
2016 to develop a MSWM plan, was conducted by NDMC,

32

Details of revenue generation by product generated through Solid Waste Management
project viz 5ale of products and by-products- compost, RDF, landfill gas, or waste to energy
(applicable if the projects have electricity generation unit) & sale of recyclables, if any.

33

Reasons for non-considering the selection of two contractors for outsourcing the
collection and transpartation services as per provision 2.9 of SWM Rules 2016.

34

The information as to whether NDMC had adopted any mechanism for processing of Solid
Waste inaccordance with the provision 4.3 of SWh Rules 2016,

35

There are various statutory and non statutory clearances required by all Municipal Solid
Waste Management Processing, Treatment and Disposal Facilities. Details of these
clearances may please be furnished,

36

Whether any Draft Project Report was prepared by NDMC before awarding the eontract
for collection and transportation of Municipal Solid Waste,

37

What are policy/guidelines adopted for collection and disposal of Hazardous waste by the
MOMC?

38

File relating to appointment of Independent consultant along with the NIT, RIP, Technical &
Financial bid & letter of award and its agreement.

39

Copy of provisional COD for collection & transportation mentioned in the letter of
Independent consultant may be provided with giving details of the provision of provisional
CODinconcession agreement.

Certificate of readiness for infrastructures for all the circles may be provided.

41

As per minutes of meeting held on 3rd December 2014 the concessionaire was to take over
the charge of circle & & 8 completely w.ef dth December 2014, whereas in the letter of
Independent Consultant stated above the provisional COD was provided for6, 8, 11 & 1
was on 30th December 2014, The reason for such contradiction along with actual COD may
be provided.

42

As per the minutes of meeting held on 3rd December 2014 there was variance in pre-
bid/operation plan and submission of concessionaire without approval of Competent
Authority of NDMC. The approval of competent authority for such variation may be
submitted to audit,

43

The copy of letter Mo.D/270/PA/MOHS 13 dated 25th October 2018 issued by MOH does
not contain the full content of the letter. The copy of above said letter having the complete
content may please be submitted,

The copy of complete content of minutes of meeting dated 26th July 2017 may please be
submitted.

45

Minutes of meeting held on 05.05.2018 issued vide letter No.D-44/CMO(HQ) /2018 dated
7th May 2013 referred in the letter of Concessionaire letter No.MWH/NDMC/WS/259
dated 10th May 2018 has also not been provided along with the copy of said letters. The
same may also be provided,

46

The independent consultant has issued only one notice to remedy of shortcoming found in
four monthly inspections, which is not as per requirement to impose & collect the penalty
as per provision of Schedule D" of O & M requirement. Reason for not mentioning the
percentage by Independent Consultant may be provided to audit.

47

The BG for performance security submitted by the concessionaire be provided to audit for
examination.




Annual Audit Report of NDMC — 2018

43

Copy of Administrative Approval of the project

49

Fund released to Department for this purpose

50

e

31

Whether the NDMC had carried out any feasibility/pilot study of the project before NIT?

e e e e ———— e e e e e

Comparative statement of technical a nd ﬂ nancial bid

3

Copy of cvaluation committee report of the approval of project

53

Copy of letter of Award tothe concessionaire [page-61 of agreement

54

Whether the concessionaire had conducted any feasibility/pilot study of the project
before commencement of work? (para2.1)

33

Details of execution of work of concessionaire/Department

26

Details of procurement of material by concessionaire/Department i.e. bins, auto tippers,
trolleyete.

57

Details of the garbage station and construction work

58

Details of treatment facility and landfill facility.

39

Date of appointment of independent consultant (para4.1.)

&0

Details of payment made toindependent consultant from date of appointment to till date.

61

Procedure for appointment of independent consultant and fixation of fee to the
consultant.

62

Details of performance security taken any from concessionaire during the execution
period (month-wise).

63

Whether the Department provided any financial support to concessionaire to implement
the project? (para 5.2)

64

The details of operation plan submitted to NDMC and independent consultant by the
concessionaire after signing of agreement [para 5.3{a))

65

Whether the consultant/NDMC reviewed the operation plan submitted by
concessionaire? (para5.3 (b)

66

Whether project facilities provided by the concessionaire were in accordance with design
_and construction of requirement?

)

Month-wise details of transportation of MW and vehicle running during the operation of
work (schedule 'B’).

68

Details of payment made against consumption of water and electric charges by the
concessionaine to NOMC [para 5.4 [viil)

69

Circle-wise readiness certificate issued by the NDMC Jf independent consultant. (para
5.4(b)

T0

Whether the commercial operation date of the project was delayed, if yes, the details of
penalty imposed by NDMC may please be provided ? (schedule “B')

n

Whether the concessionaire placed garbage trolleys, street corner bins in its area of
operation as per need and directions of the NDMC? (Schedule "8°)

s

Details of area specified and street corner bins placed as requiremendt. (Schedule ‘B')

73

Month-wise deployment auto-tippers for operation from inception of the project.

74

Number of transfier station constructed with date (Schedule 'B7)

75

Number of vehicle deployed with their registration certificate

Th

List of documents with regard to tool, equipment and vehicle with their registration
number provided to NDMC by concessionaire,
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77 Number of man power deployed with dress code by concessionaire during the operation
period.

T8 Whether independent consultant verified the M3W collected from the street corner bins,
garbage station and landscape waste are not mixed at any stage of collection or
transportation?

79 Whether any payment was made against insurance of vehicle engaged in M3W by NDMC,
ifyes, details may please be furnished?

80 | QuarterlyfAnnual reports of biodegradable M5W, non bicdegradable MSW and land
scape waste deposited at landfill facility and treatment facility duly countersigned by
independent Consultant. (Schedule 'Y = para5.9)

81 Register maintained atlandfill point for weighment of MSW along withverification slips.

82 Complaint registers addressing complaints from person in the area of operation to the
satisfaction of the Independent Consultant/NDMC.

g3 Whether the Concessionaire was provided transfer station and setting up of a workshop
for garbage vehicles and parking thereof within ten days of signing of agreement, if not,
please provide the details thereof? (Para 6.2)

B4 Month-wise details of the payment made to the Concessionaire along with the supporting
documents. (Para7.1 (b))

85 Whether any delay was made on the part of NDMC for making the payment on account of
tipping fee tothe Concessionaine?

E6 Details of service tax/VAT reimbursed to the Concessionaire along with the voucher of
making payment.

87 Whether any dispute occurred between NDMC and Concessionalire?

g3 38 Auto Tipper deployed by concessionaire for door to door collection of MSW mentioned
inPaint 2. 1under Heading Current Scenario of Waste managementin NDMC Area.

89 | Total 1899 bins placed by concessionaire. Itmay please also intimated asto whether these
bins are in addition to 1724 bens provided/placed by NDMC at different locations.

S0 53 Noofhigh capacity of binsand 1343 bins of capacity 1.1 M3

91 13 compactars deployed for operations.

92 02 hook loaders I:eing used for waste 5hiftin§ from Transfer station to Okhla plant.

93 Circle wise detailed information along with photographs of Bins overflowing with waste

94 | Circle wise detailed information along with photographs of Bins with waste spread
abound,

95 Circle wise detailed information along with photographs of Bins requiring paining

96 Circle wise detailed information along with photographs of damaged bins.

97 Circle wise detailed records establishing the repair of the bins.

98 Complaints register.

99 | Logbooksof vehicles dulyverified by IC for the stated distance covered in kilo meters.
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Annexure-lll

Chapter-4, Para-4.4.5
Statement indicating the difference of weight for the month of December -2014 (Empty Viehicle)

5. | Date Manual Computerised| Viehicle No. Tare Difference of Ward
N. No of slip No. Welght | tare welght of No.
slip of 5ame| Compactors
vehicle | (Max.-Min)
1 | 251214 197 | 1412012079 | DL-1GC-3076 | 142ED 0 B
2 | 291214 241 | 1412013816 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14210 70 8
3 | 361214 209 | 1412012480 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14120 90 g
4 | #1214 218 | 1412013013 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14160 120 g
5 | 30,1214 252 | 1412014234 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14145 135 8
6 | 30,1214 | 257 | 1412014496 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14115 165 B
7| 281214 229 | 1412013500 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14095 185 B
8 | 281214 232 | 1412013612 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14020 260 8
9 | 311214 263 | 1412014706 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14010 270 B
10 ) 231214 177 | 1412011405 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14000 280 g
11| 24.12.14| 190 | 1412011881 | DL-1GC-3076 | 14000 280 &
1 | 241214 | 183 | 1412011537 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13935 285 g
13| 30,1214 | 260 | 1412014599 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13955 285 g
14 | 26,1214 | 213 | 1412012774 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13865 35 B
15| 29.12.14| 247 | 1412014095 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13065 315 B
16 | 31,1214 270 | 1412015104 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13955 325 8
17 | 281214 236 | 1412013682 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13935 345 8
18 | 29.12.14 | 243 | 1412013947 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13935 345 E
19 | 25.12.14| 202 | 1412012268 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13925 355 g
20| 24.12,14| 186 | 1412011751 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13305 rs B
21 ) 3214 225 | 1412013323 | DL-1GC-3076 | 138ED 400 B
22 | 26,12.14| 211 | 1412012649 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13855 425 8
23 | 371214 221 | 1412013205 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13850 430 g
24 | 231214 173 | 1412011379 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13810 470 g
25 | 25.12.14| 199 | 1412012191 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13530 750 &
26 | 31.12.14| 267 | 1412014960 | DL-1GC-3076 | 13450 830 8
27 | 2512.14| 196 | 1412012065 | DL-1GC-3077 | 15050 0 6
28| 231214 | 180 | 1412011414 | DL-1GC-3077 | 15075 15 6




S. |Date  |Manual Computerised| Vehicle No. | Tare | Differenceof | Ward
M. Mo of slip No. Weight | tare welght of No.
slip ef Same | Compactors
vehicle {Max.-Min)
29| 29.12.14| 242 | 1412013833 | DL-1GC-3077 | 15060 30 6
30| 261214 208 | 1412012446 | DL-1GC-3077 | 15040 50 &
31| 301214 253 | 1412014296 | DL-1GC-3077 | 15010 B0 &
32| 241214 183 | 1412011540 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14995 95 &
33| 281214 230 | 1412013525 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14945 145 &
34 | 311214 266 | 1412014822 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14915 175 6
35| 281214 238 | 1412013704 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14890 200 &
36 | 25.12.14| 198 | 1412012166 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14885 205 8
37| 251214 204 | 1412012305 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14880 210 &
38| 241214 193 | 1412011915 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14865 225 &
39| 281214 234 | 1412013631 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14860 230 &
40 | 241214 189 | 1412011834 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14815 275 ! 6
41| 30.12.14| 256 | 1412014458 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14810 280 3
42 | 291214 248 | 1412014096 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14750 340 6
43 | 27.12.14 216 1412012906 | DL-1GC-3077 14735 355 6
44 | 271214 220 | 1412013090 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14720 370 &
45| 291214 245 | 1412014014 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14650 400 6
46 | 31.12.14| 269 | 1412015045 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14650 440 ]
47 | 271214 224 | 1412013294 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14640 450 &
48 | 30.12.14| 259 | 1412014596 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14590 500 6
49 | 23.12.14| 176 | 1412011307 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14575 515 6
50| 211214 271 | 1412015122 | DL-1GC-3077 | 14480 610 6
51| 30.12.14| 258 | 1412014539 | DL-1GC-3447 | 14270 0 11
52| 26.12.14| 210 | 1412012619 | DL-1GC-3447 | 13850 420 12
53 | 271214 222 | 1412013211 | DL-1GC-3447 | 13840 430 11
54 | 28.12.14| 228 | 1412013441 | DL-1GC-3447 | 13825 445 11
55| 26.12.14| 206 | 1412012398 | DL-1GC-3447 | 13820 450 11
56 | 24.12.14] 181 | 1412011525 | DL-1GC-3447 13805 465 11
57| 23.12.14| 179 | 1412011408 | DL-1GC-3447 | 13780 490 11
58 | 24.12.14| 185 | 1412011607 | DL-1GC-3447 | 13780 450 11
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5. | Date Manual Computerised | Viehicle No. Tare Difference of Ward
M. No of slip No. Weight | tare weight of No.
slip of Same | Compactors
vehicle (Max.-Min)
59 | 30.12.14( 251 | 1412014189 | DL-1GC-3447 13750 520 11
60 | 24.12.14| 191 | 1412011888 | DL-1GC-3447 13740 530 11
61| 27.1214| 217 | 1412012923 | DL-1GC-3447 13740 530 11
62| 30.12.14( 261 | 1412014627 | DL-1GC-3447 13740 530 11
63 | 30.12.14 | 254 | 1412014302 | DL-1GC-3447 13735 535 11
B4 | 251214 200 | 1412012204 | DL-1GC-3447 13725 545 11
65 | 27.12.14( 226 | 1412013327 | DL-1GC-3447 13650 SE0 11
66 | 26.12.14| 214 | 1412012783 | DL-1GC-3447 13685 585 11
67 | 31.12.14( 264 | 1412014764 | DL-1GC-3447 13685 585 11
68 | 29.12.14( 239 | 1412013787 | DL-1GC-3447 13680 590 11
69 | 251214 195 | 1412012025 | DL-1GC-3447 13670 600 11
70 ) 251214 203 | 1412012302 | DL-1GC-3447 13645 625 11
71 281214 233 | 1412013616 | DL-1GC-3447 13615 655 11
72| 281214 237 | 1412013689 | DL-1GC-3447 13570 700 11
73] 231214 174 1412011292 | OL-1GC-3447 13560 710 11
741 291214 249 | 1412014110 | DL-1GC-3447 13560 710 11
75| 241214 187 | 1412011785 | DL-1GC-3447 13535 735 11
76| 291214 244 | 1412013989 | DL-1GC-3447 13530 740 11
77 291214 240 | 1412013815 | DL-1GC-3448 15450 o 1
78| 281214 231 | 1412013528 | DL-1GC-3448 15270 180 1
79 | 31.12.14( 262 | 1412014676 | DL-1GC-3448 15080 370 1
80| 30.12.14| 255 | 1412014321 | DL-1GC-3448 | 15035 415 1
81] 291214 250 | 1412014146 | DL-1GC-3448 15020 1
82 311214 265 | 1412014771 | DL-1GC-3448 14950 500 1
83| 27.12.34 | 219 | 1412013015 | DL-1GC-3448 14920 530 1
84 | 25.12.14| 194 | 1412012017 | DL-1GC-3448 14840 610 |
BS | 24.12.14| 184 | 1412011561 | DL-1GC-3448 | 14820 630 1
86 | 25.12.14| 201 1412012215 | DL-1GC-3448 14780 670 1
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5. | Date Manual Computerised | Viehicle No. Tare Difference of Ward
M. No of slip No. Weight | tare weight of No.

slip of Same | Compactors

vehicle (Max.-Min)
87 | 26.12.14( 207 | 1412012424 | DL-1GC-3448 14750 700 1
88| 26.12.14| 215 | 1412012803 | DL-1GC-3448 14740 710 1
89| 25.12.14| 205 | 1412012307 | DL-1GC-3448 14710 740 1
90 | 27.12.14 | 227 | 1412013348 | DL-1GC-3448 14705 745 1
91| 231214 178 | 1412011406 | DL-1GC-3448 14685 765 1
92 | 271214 223 | 1412013224 | DL-1GC-3448 14685 765 1
93| 23.12.14| 175 | 1412011304 | DL-1GC-3448 14630 820 1
94 | 281214 235 | 1412013670 | DL-1GC-3448 14605 B45 1
95 | 24.12.14| 192 | 1412011894 | DL-1GC-3448 14600 850 1
96 | 29.12.14| 246 | 1412014054 | DL-1GC-3448 14580 870 1
97 | 24.12.14| 188 | 1412011800 | DL-1GC-3448 14545 905 1
98 | 26.12.14 | 212 | 1412012677 | DL-1GC-3448 14515 935 1
99 | 31.12.14| 268 | 1412015018 | DL-1GC-3448 14510 940 : |
1000 311214 272 | 1412015123 | DL-1GC-3448 14450 960 1
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Annexure-[V
(Chapter-5, Para-5.2.4)

Comparative Cost analysis of the options given by the Civil Department (NDMC)

Option-1 Option-2 Option-3

Financial cost ; i1} Financial Cost = T310-398 per MT Financial Cast =
T1506-1936 per MT Average rate = 1354 per MT T350-509 per MT

Average rates CED per day =50 MT Average rate from source to
TI725 per MT Period = 5 years dump = T499 per MT

CED por day — 90 MT Maximum average cost from source to | CED per day — 60 MT
Period = 5 years designated bins = T499 per MT* Period =1 year (on trial basis)

Total expected expenditure of contract =
T354 per MT

[mverage cost lifting from Bin to Dump) +
T499 per MT (M aximum average cost
from source to Bin ) ¥ 90 [MT) x 365
(days) x 5 (years) = T140105250 + ¥3.51
Crore (procurement of C&D waste bins
and hook loaders) = 17,52 crore

Total expected expenditure
of contract =

L1725 [per MT)x

90 [MT) 2 365 [days) x

(lijFinancial cost = T763-931 per MT
Average cost =872 per MT

C&D per day =90 MT

Feriod — 5 years

Total expected expenditure of
contract for 01 year on trial

basis : 7499 [per MT) =
&0 (MT per day] x 365 (days)

5 [years) Maximum average cost from source to = T10928100 + T1.60 crore
T2B3331250 say designated bins = T459 per MT® [procurement of hook loader
128.33 crone Total expected expenditure of contract = | and waste bins) = €.2.69 crone
Average cost ifting froem Bln to Dump
T872 per MT + 7499 per MT (Maximum
average cost from source 1o Binj x 90 MT
per day % 365 [days) x 5 [year) =
225186750 = say T22 .51 crore
Cost for one year Cost for one year (90 MT per day) Cost for one year
(S0 MT par day) : as per Option 2 [I) : 73.50 crore; (60 MT per day) : 72,69 crore;
15,66 crore; hence, hence, per MT per day = 11066.69 hence, per MT per day =
per MT per day = 71725 | Cost for one year (90 MT per day) 712259.59

as per Option 2 (1) : 14,50 crore;
hence, per MT per day = T1371

* Maximum average cost of lifting of CRD waste to designated point by NOMC has been taken from the
option 3 whenehy it is the sverage cost of picking of C&D waste from source to dump at Rs. 459 per MT,

whereas in option 2 the cost to NDMC is only for upliftment from source 1o bin which will be kower than
the cost from source to dump,
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Annexure-V
[Chapter-5, Para-5.2.6)

Statement indicating the Difference of weight (Empty Vehicle)

5l. | Date Vehicle No. Weight as per Difference
No. weighment slip (Kg.) (Kg.)
1 17.01. 2017 DLIGCT023 12810 1830
2 | 04.05.2017 7023 13490 2510
3 17.05.2017 7023 12480 1500
4 | 27.06.2017 7023 13640 2660
5 | 29.06.2017 7023 16260(Max.) 5280
6 | 01.07.2017 7023 14660 3680
7 26.07,2017 7023 14980 4010
g8 | 27.07.2017 7023 15450 4470
9 | 04.08.2017 7023 10980(Min.) 0
10 | 13.04.2018 7023 13010 2030
11 | 17.09.2018 7023 12890 1910
12 | 05.05.2017 6947 13560 2240
13 | 07.05.2017 63947 13660 2340
14 | 11.05.2017 6347 13220 1900
15 | 03.06.2017 6947 13000 1630
16 | 02.07.2017 6947 12170 850
17 | 03.07.2017 6347 14360 3040
18 | 17.07.2007 6947 14450 3130
19 | 29.07.2017 6947 15500 4180
20 | 29.07.2017 6347 15700 4380
21 | 050382017 6247 12030 710
22 | 06.08.2017 6947 11320 0
23 | 12.08.2017 63947 15890 4570
24 | 20.08.2017 6947 17490 6170
25 | 03.08.2018 5347 13860 2540
26 | 04102018 Ba47 12970 1650

Mote :- Minimum weight in above table was considered for calculation of difference in weight.
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Annexure =V
[Chapter-b, Para 6.1)
Wanting records/information

5.No. Name of record/finformation

1 Register towatchthe disposal of complaintsin respect of unauthorized construction

2 Record/flist of unauthorized building identified and actually demolished during the year
2017-18

3 Number of applications received for approval of Building plans, completion certificates
and additlon/alterations.

4 Mumber of sanctions released for building plans, completion certificates along with
relevant files.

5 Record relating to revenue collected on account of sanction of building plan fees,
inspection charges, conversion charges and compound charges etc.

(] A consolidated record of sealing/de-sealing of the premises (residential/fcommercial) for
the audit period and penaltiesimposed onthe properties if any.

7 Building plan register, Security Deposit Register, Stock register, Bank Guarantee Register,
Misc. Advance register, Stock register and challan filefregister.

B Detailed year-wise information pertaining to the erection charges of temporary hangers.

9 Policy files of mobile towersin NOMC area.

10 Statement of number of mobile towers installed during the period of audit and file(s)
thereto,

11 | Record relating to estimate/monitoring committee.

12 No. of cases where building/part thereof was being used for human habitation without
permission.

13 | Records relating to field survey's carried out by the Architect Department as per the
provisions of MPD-2021 notified on Tth February 2007,

14 | Noof ownerfallottee/resident of the plot / dwelling unit who declare such mixed-use by
filing up a form in this respect and depositing it with the local body concerned any pay one-
time registration charges at rates to be notified with the approval of the Central
Government as per provision of MPD-202 1.

15 | Detalls of Payment made by the property owners/allottees voluntarily before 30th June of
every year in respect of the previous assessment year [April-March as per clause 15.9 of
MPD-2021.

16 No. of allottees/owners who has obtained sanction of revised building plans and has paid
necessary fees/charges.

17 | No. of test checks conducted and no. of properties found under mixed use, whether
registered or not.




18 | The no. of ownersfallottees/residents of the plot/dwelling unit who has not declared such
mixed-use asper provision of MPD-2021 and not deposited the charges as required.

19 | No. of properties found to be under mixed use, without registration or in violation of the
terms of this notification and paid to the local body, a penalty amounting to 10 times the
annual conversion charges for mixed use.

20 | No.of Building Plan sanctioned/ released during 2015-16 0 2017-18.

21 No. of cases wherein notices were received for issuing Completion Certificates during
2015-1610 2017-18

22 | No.of CCsfCPsissued during 2015-16t0 2017-18

23 | No. of cases where unauthorized occupationf use was found without issuing CCf CP
during 2015-16t0 2017-18

24 | No,of Sanctions of Building Plans received by the STC during 2015-1610 2017-18

25 No. of construction activities started/noticed by STC during 2015-16t0 2017-18

26 No. of cases in which violations noticed during 2015-16t0 2017-18

27 | No. of cases in which necessary action against violation of laws was taken during 2015-16
to2017-18

28 | No.ofcasesinwhich actionwasnottaken during 2015-16t0 2017-18.

29 | Register/list/information for Cess received.

30 Register for receipt of stacking charges received.

31 | Register for cases received for evalidation of building plan and Revalidation fees paid by
the applicants.

32 Register for sale of Bullding application forms.

33 Register/list/finformation notice for commencement of construction work of sanctioned
building plan.

34 | Information/register where construction work started without submitting the notice for
commencement of constrection work.

35 | Register/information/list where notice for completion of construction upto plinth level
received and inspection feesdeposited.

36 | Register/listfinformation of occupancy of building without issue of CC & CP after
completion of construction as per sanctioned plan and action taken there for.

37 | Budgetfilefortheyear2013-14to 2017-18

38 | Annual Action Plan Strategic plan and its achlevement for the last five years.

39 | Surveyfiles

40 | Inspection files

41 | Statusof court cases pending as of 31 March 2018

42 | Council resolutionsfiles

43 | Challans Registers/files
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ad

Stock Reglsters

45

Policy and proposal files

46

Sanctioned strength and menin position under the Architect Department

ar

Building Plan Approval management System [BPAMS) under Architect Department-

When was the BPAMS operationalised?

Brief description of the BRAMS and budget & expenditure incurred there against.

Whether any periodical payment Is being made to any agency, if yes terms and conditions
may please be furnished

Policy files in respect of the BRAMS, where the proposal wasinitiated and approved by the
competent authority.

Project management report of applications,

Copy of system manual, user manual and operation manual of BRAMS,

Performance analysis reports.

Input output documents.

User feedback about the system.

18 filesin respect of building plans / CC & CP and Add/Alt. (List enclosed)

49

18 filesin respect of STC (South). (List enclosed)

50

18 filesin respect of Design Cell, [List enclosed)

51

18 filesin respect of STC [North) [List enclosed)

52

12 filesin respect of Misuse of property in NDMC Area (List enclosed)

53

Year-wise, month-wise and date-wise detailsfdata of applications for Building Plan,
revalidation of plan & completion certificate received initially, approved/rejected/fissved
and pending with NDMC, during last three year from 2015-16t0 2017-18.

54

Year-wise and month-wise details/data of cases where the constructionfprescribed time
wore completed and applicant did not apply for completion certificatefcompletion plan.

55

Year wise, month-wise details/data of cases of misuse reported, pemalty imposed,
disposed off and still pending for compliance during 2015-16to 2017-18.

56

Month-wise details/data of misuse detected in the test check/periodical check by the
Architect Department on its own initiatives.

57

Year-wise, month-wise details/data of the properties where the progress of construction
were monitored during 2015-16t0 2017-18 by the spedial Technical Cell,

28

Year-wise, month-wise details/data of the properties where the applicant submitted
notice for commencement ofwork to NDMC.

59

Year-wise, month-wise details/data of the properties where the violationfdiscrepancy/
deviation observed during construction in respect of approved bullding plan

Year-wise, menth-wise details/data of the properties where the notice were issued after
detection of deviation from the approved building plan.

131




61

Copy of Manual of Architect Department

62

Details of the records/files which are required to be maintained by sections of Architect
Department.

&

Duties and responsibilities assigned under Hierarchy of Architect Department,

2

Copy of the policy, orders, circulars, directives & files with regard to the functioning of
Architect Department irrespective of General business allocation as mentioned on the
NDMCwebsite.

&

Maonth-wise Detalls/data of the receipt of revenue during the last three years.

&

Inspection of Properties-

Whether any periodicity of inspections of properties was decided, if yes, the copy of
procedure/guidelines may please be furnished.

Years wise details/dataof inspection of properties carried out from the 2015-16t0 2017-18.

Maonth-wise details/data of properties where the violation discrepancy observed during
inspection, settled and still pending with Architect Department.

By

Surveycarried out-

Whether any periodicity of inspections of properties was decided, if yes, the copy of
procedure/guidelines may please be furnished,

Years wise details/data of inspection of properties carried out from the 2015-16 to 2017-
18.

Maonth-wise details/data of properties where the violation discrepancy observed during
inspection, settled and still pending with Architect Department.

68

Complaint received-

Mechanism evalved for the treatment of complaint cases in Architect Department.

Maonth wise details/data of the complaint received, complaint settled and still pending
during the last three year from 2015-16 to 2017-18.
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